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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for the Six
Months Ended June 30, 2621 and 20620

GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries (GMA/the Company) remained at the forefront of the broadcast industry
sealing first half of this year with consolidated revenues surpassing the 210.0-billion mark, at #10,598 million.
While community quarantines lingered for over a year now due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company’s
operations remained essential especially in the delivery of responsible, unbiased, timely and accurate news and
information. Production of fresh and original station-produced programs have also been a constant objective
of the Network as part of its commitment fo its viewers, whilst ensuring that caution and adherence to
govermment-mandated protocols were exercised at all times. For the past six months this year, the Company
also launched a new digital channel called / Heart Movies (which features a diverse roster of films of different
genres and origing) and has likewise commenced regular broadcast of DepEd TV in support of the blended
learning advocacy of the Department of Education. These channels complete the Digital Terrestrial TV (DTT)
line-up of the Company alongside Heart of Asia and Hallypop which saw initial broadcast in 2H last year.
Finally, the Network once again recorded another milestone as it clinched its partnership with the oldest
collegiate athletic association in the country —NCAA. During the second quarter this year, NCAA Season *96
saw its maiden airing in GMA’s Good TV (GTV) channel. Midway this 2021, GMA remains on track vis-a-
vis its target financial and operational objectives.

60 2021 6M 2020 Inc/(Dec) %
Income Data {in millions PhP) |{in millions PhP) | {in millions PhP)
Revenues
Advertising revenue 9,886.90 ' 6,146.00 3,740.91 81%
Consumer sales A
Sale of services 454.61 520.37 (74.76), -14%
Sale of goods ' 256.57 76.32 180.25 | 2368%
10,598.08 6,751.88 3,846.39 57%
Total operating expenses 5,905.78 4,736.10 1,169.68 25%
EBITDA 5,527.16 2,632.70 2,894.45 | 110%
Net income 3,668.61 1,408.08 2,260.52 1 161%
Alttributabie to Equity Holders of Parent Co. 3,635.28 1,401.04 2.234.24 | 159%
Nonconirolling Inferest 33.33 7.04 26.28 | 373%

Cementing first six months results this 2021, consolidated advertising revenues scared to 29,887 million, a
huge 61% higher than a vear ago. All airtime-revenue generating platforms vielded upbeat sales results versus
same period last year. Sale of goods further boosted the top line of the Company, owing to the successful
launch of GMA Affordabox in the middle of last year and GMA Now towards year-end of 2020. Meanwhile,
Sale of services which included subscriptions income, subsidiaries’ operations and others, concluded the first
semester down 14%, contracting by 75 million, from 2529 million to 8455 million.

Along with the increase in revenues, the Company’s total consolidated operating expenses (OPEX) for the past
six months this year similarly grew by 25% or £1,170 million from a year ago, albeit at a rate which is much
slower than the improvement in the top line. Production cost ended the first half of the year up by 22% as
more in-house productions were mounted this period against last year. Meanwhile, cost of goods tripled from
P66 million to 8201 million as GMA’s set-top box was only launched toward end of 2Q last year. The hike in
consolidated general and administrative expenses (GAEX) by 22% or by 633 million Hkewise added to the
increase in costs in between periods.



With upbeat revenues during the period, consolidated Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) surged to BS,527 million, more than double last year’s EBITDA of 2,633 million.
In the same manner, consolidated Net Income after Tax for the initial six months this year outstripped last
year’ s 1,408 million, wrapping up at #3,669 million this 1H 2021.

Revenues

As the Network continued its dominance in the broadcast industry, sales remained at high levels throughout
the past six months this year. Allin all, consolidated top line of the Company for the 1™ semester amounting
to £10,598 million climbed by 57% or #3,846 million versus comparable period last year’s 6,752 million.
The presence of new revenue streams such as the sale of digital set-up boxes (GMA Affordabox) and digital
TV mobile receivers/dongles (GMA Now) further added to this year’s top-line growth. Advertising revenues
remained the lifeblood of the Company with a 93% share of the total consolidated revenue pie.

oM 2021 6M 2020 Inc/{Dec) %
Revenues (in millions PhP)| (in millions PhP), (in millions PhP)
Advertising revenues 9,886.90 6,148.00 3.740.91 61%
Consumer sales
Sale of senices 454.61 529.37 (74.78)] -14%
Sale of goods 256.57 76.32 180.25 | 236%
10,598.08 6,751.68 3,846.39 57%

Flagship channel GMA-7 continued to be the bread and butter of the Company comprising more than a third
of total consolidated revenues for the period.  Against last year, a considerable improvement of 58% was seen
in the channel’s top line. The upswing in revenues this year was heightened by the onset of the pandemic
towards end-March of last year which drove revenues in April 2020 at one of its lowest levels. Furthermore,
the non-renewal of closest competitor’s free-to-air radio and televisions broadcasting franchise middle of last
year also boosted the Company’s top line, owing 1o the shift in some advertising placements. The growth in
this year’s top line was a result of the increase in both average rate per minute as well as total minutes load in
between periods.

Radio operations followed with the next highest airtime sales contribution. Compared fo last vear, a solid
increase of 41% was manifested by Radio business. Cebu and Provincial stations’ combined sales made up
49% of the business’ total revenue pie and also pitched in the highest growth in absolute terms, by 44% from
a year ago. Super Radyo DZBB bagged revenues which were §1% higher compared to the first half of 2020
and also registered as the most improved unit, percentage-wise. FM station Barangay LS ended with a 55%
sales hike than a year ago. These increases were partly offset by the reduction in revenues of Dobol B TV as

owing to shorter airing hours this year. Last year also featured the simulcast airing of Doboel B in Ch-7 versus
none this period.

Capping first semester results, Regional TV sales reached unprecedented heights, more than doubling prior
year's reverue peg with a 119% improvement. Both National and Local sales contributed in the sterling top-
line performance of this business segment. Among the regional stations, considerable growth was seen in the
Mindanao region. The approval to establish a sales and news hub in the Western Mindanao area this mid-2021
will likewise further boost sales and operations in the Mindanao area. As a feather in its cap, ali Regional TV
stations across the country finished the first half of the year with either double or triple-digit percentage
improvements in their top lines.
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For the newly reprogrammed channel Good TV or GTV, the first six months of this year brought healthy sales,
eclipsing last year’s revenue peg by a huge 203%. All production units — from entertainment, news, public
affairs and even rented/canned materials - registered improvements in their top line. The channel hikewise
embarked on mounting station-produced series this period. Meanwhile, this semester saw another first for the
channel and the Company as a whole with the launch of Rise Up Stronger: The NCAA Season "96 program,
aired under GTV. The Digital Terrestrial Television (DTT) channels comprised of Heart of Asia, Hallypop
and the recently launched I Heart Movies and DepEd also provided incremental sales this semester versus

practically none during the same period last year as the first DTT channel, Heart of Asia was only launched
towards the end of June 2020,

Advertising revenues from online/digital sales continued to display growth potential for the Company, despite
the proliferation of players in the online landscape. For the six-month period ended June 30 this year, online
advertising revenues posted an improvement by 74% versus same period in 2020. Both programmatic and
direct buys enjoyed healthy top-line gains in between periods. Finally, airtime advertising abroad through the
Company’s GMA Pinoy TV platform finished off the first six months of the year lower by 20% against a year
ago, dragged by the worldwide effect of the pandemic as well as the declining affinity towards cable.

Meanwhile, Sale of services, which mainly included International operations (subscription and syndication)
and other subsidiary operafions, settled at 455 million, exhibiting a decline of 75 million or 14% versus
same period last year. Primary drag came from subscription and syndication revenues which continued to fall
behind compared fo first half of last year. Subscription revenues were hit the hardest due to the attrition in
subscriber count of banner channel GMA Pinoy TV. While GLTV and GNTV managed to increase subscriber
count in between periods these were not enough to compensate for the reduction in Pinoy TV. Aggravating
the above was the appreciation of the PhP against the USD by an average of PhP2.27 to USD1 or by almest
5%. Syndication revenues likewise finished off lower by 34% by the close of the first half this year. Apart
from the foregoing, revenues from subsidiaries also declined during the period generally due to business
inactivity brought about by the community quarantine.

Merchandise sales from January to June this vear pitched in 257 million, yielded incremental sales of 180
millien versus same period in 2020. The growth mainly came from GMA Affordabox with over a million
units sold since it’s successful launch in May last year.

Expenses

6M 2021 8M 2020 Inc/(Dec) %

Operating Expenses {in millions PhP)| {in millions PhP)| (in millions PhP}
Production costs 2,238.57 1,837.02 401.55 22%
Cost of sales 200.75 65.76 135.00 | 205%
Total Direct Costs 2,439.32 1,802.77 536.55 28%
Generat and administrative expensex 3,466.46 2,833.33 633.13 22%
5,505.78 4,736.10 1,169 68 25%

Consolidated total operating expenses (OPEX) of the Company concluded the first six months of this year at
5,906 million, escalating by 1,170 million or 25% versus last year’s P4,736 million. Cost increases in all
categories were reflected in between periods as the new normal has set in compared to 2(} last year when most
operations were at bare minimum, except for news and some public affairs programs.



6M 2021 6M 2020 Inc/(Dec) %
Production Costs {in millions PhP)| {in millions PhP). (in millions PhF)
Talent fees 1,105.23 903.87 201.37 22%
Rentals and outside services 148.09 165.72 {(17.63); -11%
Other program expenses 429.58 358.68 69.88 19%
Sub-total - Cash Production Costs 1,682.88 1,429.26 253.62 18%
Program rights amortization 482.83 330.56 15227 46%
Depreciation and amortization 72.86 77.20 (4.34) -6%
Sub-iotal - Non-cash Production Costs 555,69 40775 147.94 36%
Total production costs 2,238.57 1,837.02 401.55 22%

Even as the pandemic dragged up to this day and community guarantines have not fully stabilized, the Network
has resumed production of original programs, seeing the need to deliver superior entertainment to its andience,
while at the same time adhering to government protocols and practicing safety measures accordingly. During
the first half of this year, most programs featured fresh episodes, albeit mixed with some occasional reruns.
This was in stark contrast to the entire second guarter last year - during the first outbreak of COVID-19 --
when most operations, particularly in-house production of programs, were suspended. As such, fotal
production cost (cash and non-cash) shot up by 8402 million or by 22% from £1,837 million to 22,239 million
by the close of the first half this year. Cash production sealed the period at 21,683 million, climbing by 2254
milhion or 18%, mainly from higher talent fees. On the other hand, non-cash direct cost hiked by 2148 million
or 36% owing to the increase in the number of rented materials shown in GTV a:nd the other DTT channels --
I Heart Movies and Heart of Asia.

Givt 2021 6M 2020 Inc/(Dec) %

General and Administrative Expenses {in miflions PhP)| (in millions PhP), (in millions PhP)
Perscnnel costs 2,383.13 1,939.38 443.75 23%
Qutside services 205.75 131.26 74.49 57%
Facilities costs 224 47 173.47 51.00 29%
Taxes and licenses 127.41 87.72 39.69 45%
Others 303.92 282.36 21.55 8%
Subtotal - Cash GAEX 3,244.68 2,614.21 630.48 24%
Depreciation and amortization 202 14 196,89 5.15 3%
Provision for doubtful accounts 8.25 0.25 - -
Amortization of software costs 18.38 21.88 (2.50) -11%
Subtotal - Non-cash GAEX 221.77 219.12 2.65 1%
Total GAEX 3,466.46 2,833.33 833.13 22%

Meanwhile, consolidated general and administrative expenses (GAEX) accumulated to 3,466 million, ahead
of last year by 2633 million or up by 22%. Personnel cost propelled the rise in this category, edging last year
by P444 million or 23%. The presence a mid-year bonus this 2021, in confrast to none during the same period
last year was one of the main reasons for the hike. Provision for pension Hability likewise grew this period
aligned with the results of the latest actuarial valuation report. This was also heightened by the growth in sales
incentives of Sales and Marketing officers and account executives owing to the jump in revenues between
comparative periods. Lastly, the annual merit and collective bargaining increases also contributed to the climb.

Most overhead expenses surpassed last year’s balances as operations have stabilized within the Company
following a new normal set-up. Facilities cost grew by ®51 million or by 29% as Repairs and Maintenance
last year were put on hold especially during the second quarter due to the lockdown imposed by the
government, Similarly, Utility charges last year were lower due to limited operations - apart from most studios



not being utilized, the telecommuting work scheme also resulted in less office areas and electricity being used.
The increase tn generation charge by electricity providers this period, heightened the rise in the account. While
a work-from-home set up is still generally observed, more areas within the Network premises are now being
utilized. Taxes and Licenses similarly outpaced last year’s results by P40 million, mainly due to higher
franchise tax payments which was based on prior year’s revenues.

EBITDA

While both direct cost and general and administrative expenses registered increases, they were nonetheless at
a slower rate than the improvement in the top line. Hence, after two quarters this year, consolidated Earnings
before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) soared to 5,527 million, exhibiting a huge
increase of P2,894 million or 110% versus same period a year ago. This resulted from the remarkable growth
in consolidated sales by B3,846 million, partly offset by the hike in cash operating expenses by 21,019 million.

Net Income

With a robust top-line performance and managed costs, the Company secured the first semester of the year
with Net Income after Tax at the B3.7-billion level. Bottom line of B3,669 million from January to June
outstripped TH 2020’s £1,408 million by a whopping 22,261 million or 161%. Apart from the hefty gains
from regular operations, this period’s noteworthy increase was further accentuated by the reduction in
corporate income taxes from 30% to 25% following the enactment into law last March 26, 2021 of Republic
Act (RA) 11534 otherwise known as the Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE)
Act.  Moreso, the impact of CREATE on the Y2020 income tax rate (retro July 1, 2020) was already
incorporated in the 2Q 2021 financial report, following the 15-day post publication effectivity of the said law
and also coincided with the actual payment of the reduced Y2020 annual income tax last-April 15, 2021.

Balance Sheet Accounts

As at end-June 2021, the Company’s total assets stood at 25,403 million, exhibiting an increase of 7% from
December 31, 2020°s 223,539 million.

Cash and cash equivalents amounting to 3,508 million climbed by 294 million or 9% from 2020 balance of
£3,215 million as a result of net cash flows provided by operating activities of 3,511 million primarily netted
by acquisition of property and equipment, payments of dividends and short-term loans during the six-month
period of 2021 amounting to B436 million, 26,537 million and 2721 million, respectively. Trade and other
receivables closed at 210,267 million, 2% less than end-20207s B10,467 million as a result of better collection
efforts for the six-month period ended June 30, 2021.

Meanwhile, total liabilities also hiked by 40% or 4,420 million as at end of 2nd quarter of 2021 this year to
15,477 million from £11,058 million in end-2020 as a result of higher short-term loans balance by 3,812
million in between reporting periods — due to last year’s cash dividends being distributed in the second semester
versus the usual May payout. Other liability accounts that resulted in higher ending balances were Trade
payable and other current liabilities (due to normal trade transactions), Obligation for program and other rights
(parallel with the increase seen in total Program and other rights) and Pension lability (due to higher retirement
expenses recorded). These were somewhat cushioned by the drop in Income tax payable from 21,777 million

as at end-2020 to P850 million as of June 30 this period, due to the already mentioned reduction in corporate
income tax rate emanating from the CREATE Law.



Equity attributable to Parent Company stockbolders of 89,820 million as at June 30, 2021 decreased by 23%
or 2,989 million, mainly due to the cash dividend payout this year, which was partly offset by the 23,636

million net income atiributable to Parent Company earned for the first half of 2021,

6 2021 6M 2020
Cash Flows {in millions PhP) | (in millions PhP)
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities 3,511.01 {157.04)
Net cash used in investing activities {457.10) {218.40)
Net cash used in financing acfivities {2,680.35) {405.83)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {79.84) {26.69)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 293.62 {807.96)
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of year 3,214.82 2,254.97
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 3,508.44 1,447.02

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities measured at 3,511 million in 1H 2021. This stemmed from income
before income tax of 4,740 million, adjusted mainly by Program rights usage of 483 million, Depreciation
expense of 275 million, Net unrealized foreign exchange gain of 27 million, Gain on sale of property and
equipment of P44 million, Amortization of software costs of B19 million, Interest income amounting to 7
million and Interest expense and financing charges of 17 million, apart from the changes in working capital.
The primary component of the changes in working capital included the 2575 million and 237 million increase
in Prepaid expenses and other current assets and Right-of-use assets, respectively, reduced by the P820 million

increase in Trade payables and other current liabilities and £236 million decrease in Trade and other
receivables, '

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to P457 million, coming primarily from the 2436 million

additions to Property and equipment and 248 million acquisition of Land. These were partly offset by the 250
million proceeds from property sales,

Finapcing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to P2,680 million basically due to payment of and cash

dividends and loans amounting to #6,537 million and 721 million, respectively, partially evened out by the
availments of short-term loans totaling £4,586 million as of end-June, 2021.



ey Financial Performance Indicators

The key financial performance indicators that the Company monitors are the following:

Key Performance indicators

6N 2021
{in millions PhF)

6M 2020
(in millions PhP)

Inc/{Dec)
{in miflions PhP)

%

Revenues

15,598.08 6,751.68 3,846.39 57%
Advertising revenues 9,886.90 6,1486.00 3,740.91 61%
Cash operatling expenses 5,128.32 4,109.23 1,018.09 25%
EBITDA 5,527.16 2,632.70 2,804 .45 110%
Net income before tax 4,740.11 2,013.16 2,726.95 135%
Net income affer tax 3,668.61 1,408.08 2,260.62 | 161%
Key Performance Indicators 6M 2021 BM 2020 Inc/{Dec) %
Current ratio 1.80 2.21 {0.42)| -18%
Asset-to-Equity ratio 2.56 1.69 0.87 51%
Debt-to-Equity ratio 0.46 0.04 0.42 | 1002%
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio 287.67 418.52 {130.85); -31%
Gross Profit Margin 7% 72% 0.05 7%
EBITDA Margin 52% 39% 0.13 34%
Net Income Margin 35% 21% 0.14 656%
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GMANETWOREK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2021

December 31, 2020

Unaudited Audited
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 8 and 31) 3,508,441,502 3,214,817,264
Trade and other receivables (Notes 9, 22 and 31) 10.266,668.0899 10,466,537.695
Program and other rights (Note 10) 1,254,975,081 750,736,229
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 11) 2.589,664,355 2,014,315,306
Total Current Assets 17,619.689.637 16,446,406,494
Nemcurrent Assets
Property and equipment:
At cost (Note 14) 2,756,267.814 2,588,113,704
At revalued amounts (Note 15) 2,850.,896,481 2,803,196,184
Right-of-Use assets (Note 29) 116,576,215 89,268,276
Financial assets at fair value through comprehesive income
{Notes 12, 31 and 32) 192,282,088 192,132,088
Investments and advances (Notes 13 and 23) 184,627,901 184,524 315
Program and other rights (Note 10) 191,946,604 192,229,776
Investment properties (Note 16) 34,178,640 34,869,834
Deferred income tax assets - net 1,222,509,056 1,172,719,952
Other noncurrent assets (Note 17) 240,226,205 235,808,847
Total Noncurrent Assets 7,783,505,004 7492 862976
TOTAL ASSETS 25,403,194,041 23,939,269 470
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities (Notes 19,23 and 31) 3,799,091,836 2,977,884,927
Short-term loans (Note 18) 4,532.400,000 720,345,000
Income tax payable 850,006,394 1,776,880,733
Current portion of lease liabilities {Notes 29 and 31) 13,429,400 10,485,295
Obligation for program and other rights (Notes 20 and 31) 559,029,898 176,182,128
Dividends payable (Note 31) 44,045,949 19,894 437
Total Corrent Liabilities 9.798.0683.477 5,681,682,520

Noneurrent Liabilities
Pension Hability
Other fong-term employee benefits

5,189,875,885

4,915,125,68%

365,145,166 349,702,454

Lease liabilities - net of current portion (Notes 29 and 31) 79,357,274 66,370,777
Dismantling provision 45,080,552 44,973 410

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,679,458,877 5.376,172,330

Total Liahilities 15477,462,354 11,057,854,850

(Forward)
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June 30, 2021

December 31, 2026

Unaudited Audited
Equi ty Attribatable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock (Note 22) 4,864,692,600 4.864,692,000
Additional paid-in capital (Note 22) 1.659,035,196 1,659,035,196
Revaluation increment in land - net of tax (Note 15) 1.832,684,129 1,710,505,188
Remeasurements loss on retirement plans - net of tax (2,780,329,116) (2,596,957,048)
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale financial assets - net of tax (49,537,791 {47,709,492)
Retained earnings (Note 22) 4,327,776,126 7,253,764.093
Treasury stock (Notes 22 and 30) (28,483,171) (28,483,171
Underiying shares of the acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts
{(Notes 22 and 30) (5,790,016) {5,790,016)
Total Equity Attributable to Parent Company 9,820,047.357 12,809,056,750
Equity Attributable to Non-controlling Interest 165,684,330 72,357 870
Total Equity 9.925,731,687 12,881,414,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 25,281,015,1060 23,939,269,470

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Quarters Ended June 30

Faor the Six Months Ended June 30

2021 2020 2021 2020
NET REVENUES (Note 24) £,140,764,183 3,219,696,337  10,598,679,168 6,751,684,741
PRODUCTION COSTS (Note 25} 1,138,169,950 612,111,327 2,238,572,401 1,837,018,201
COST OF SALES (Note 11) 86,380,810 65,755,593 200,751,422 65,755,593
GROSS PROFIT 3.916,213.423 2,541,829 417 8,158,755,344 4,848,910,947
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES (Note 26) 1,844,230,164  1366,328,714  3.466,458,446 2833328566
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) - NET
Net foreign currency exchange loss (50.926,720) (10,584,376) {25,097,468) (35,166,087
Interest income (Note §) 3,873,421 4,002,331 6,687,224 11,843,587
Interest expense (14,349,801} (173,038) (16,511,861) {4,759,043)
Others - net (Note 28) 36,868,493 10,718,534 82,739,173 25,660,565
(24,534.607) 3,962,951 47,817,068 {2,420,978)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,047448,652 1,179,463,634 4,740,113,967 2,613,161,403
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX :
Current - 343,526,656 386,093,526 1,044,043,625 663,223,896
Deferred 53,475,192 (31,296,710 27,463,960 - {58,146,379)
397,001,848 354,796,816 1.071,507,585 605,077,517
C NET INCOME 1.650,446,804 824 666,838 3,668,606,382 1,408,083,886
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L.OSS) - net of tax '
Item to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods -
Net change in fair market value of financial
assets at FVQOCI - - {1,828,299) {224 .500)
Item not to be reclassified to profif or loss in
subsequent periods -
Revaluation increment in land 122,178,941 - 122,178,941 -
Remeasurement gain on retirement plan (180,352.870) {11,920} {183,372,068) (3,544,100)
(58,173,929 (11,920) (63,021,426) (3,768,600)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1,592,272.875 824,654,918 3,605,584,956 1,404,315,286
Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of Parent Company 1,637,125,608 826,364,934 3,635,279,922 1,401,039,158
Non-controlling interest 13,321,196 (1,698,098) 33,326,460 7.044.728
1,650,446,804 824 666,838 3,668,606,382 1,408,083 886
Total comprehensive income attributabie to;
Equity Holders of Parent Company 1.578,951,679 826,353,016 3,572,258.496 1,397,270,558
Non-confrolling inferest 13,321,196 {1,698,098) 33,326,460 7,044 728
1.592,272.875 824,654 918 3,605,584,956 1,404,315,286
Basie/Diluted Earnings
Per Share (Note 30) 0.337 0.170 §.748 (3,288

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Six Months Ended June 36

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTEVITIES
Income before income fax 4.748,113,967 2,013,161,403
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 14, 16 and 29) 275,602,029 274,187,883
Gain on sale of property and equipment (Note 28) (44,306,752) (3,404,770}
Net unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) 26,686,701 26,686,701
Amortization of software costs (Notes 17 and 26) 19,383,644 21,880,658
Interest expense 16,511,860 4,361,101
Interest income (Note 8) (6,687,224} (11,843,589}
Provision for doubiful accounts (Notes § and 26) 250,000 250,000
Operating income before working capital changes 5,026,954,225 2,325,279,687
Program rights usage (Note 10) 482,831,452 330,558,134
Increases (decreases) in;
Trade and cother receivables 236,098,695 (1,979,820,320)
Program and other rights (986,787,132) (494,606,162)
Prepaid oxpenses and other currert assets {575,349,049) (232,985,813)
Right-of-use assets {37,413.950) (778,396)
Increases (decreases) in: .
Trade payables and other cwrrent liabilities 819,977,619 (77.437,729)
Obligations for program and other rights 382,847,770 316,763,736
Lease liabilities 16,420,430 (706,901)
Dismantling costs 1,163,186 -
Pension liability 78,746,303 191,587,211
Other long-term employee benefits 29,906,337 11,262 235
Net cash generated from operations £,475,395,886 389,115,702
Income taxes paid (1,970,927,964) (554,720,505)
Interest received 6,541,255 8,560,945

Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities

3,511,609,177

{157,043,858)

Acquisttions of;
Property and equipment (Note 14)
Land at revalued amounts {Note 15}

(436,142,118)

(200,156,213}

(47,700,297) {2,688,350)
Software costs (Note 17) (28,276,334) (8,216,645)
Proceeds from sale of propertics 49,685,846 4,174,231
Decreases (increases) in:
Financial asset at FVYOCI (BGL,770) {311,342)
Investments and advances 1,721,71% (621,336)
Other noncyrrent assets 4,469,332 {10,577,673)

Net cash used in investing activities

{457,697,62Z)

(218,397,328)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of:
Cash dividends (Note 22)

(6,537,116,377) -
Short-term Ioans (Note 18) (726.660,086) {400,000,000)
Interest expense (Note 18) (8,539,239) (5,827,768)
Proceeds from availments of short-term loans (Note 18) 4,585,965,0006 -

Net cash used in financing activities

(2.680,350,916)

(405,827,768)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH ON HAND AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(79,936,701)

(26,686,701)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

293,624,238
3,214,817,264

(807,955,655)
2.254.971,656

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

3.508,441,502

1,447.016,601

See accompanying Noies o Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSTDIARIES
NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Cerporate Information

GMA Network, Inc. (GNI or the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group™) are
incorporated in the Philippines. The Group is primarily involved in the business of radio and television
broadeasting. The Group is also involved in film production and other information and enteriainment-related
businesses. The Parent Company was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission {(SEC)
on June 14, 1950. On July 20, 1995, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the extension of the corporate term
of the Parent Company for another 50 vears from June 14, 2000. In 1997, the SEC approved the said extension.

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are publicly listed and traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange.

The registered office address of the Parent Company is GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner TDSA,
Quezon City.

2. Basis of Preparation

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQCT) and land at revalued amounts, which
are measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the

Parent Company’s functional and presentation cusrency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when
otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 and for each of the two years in the period ended June 30, 2021, The
Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);

e Hxposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

¢ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

& The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
s  Right ariging from other contractual arrangements
s The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control.
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests (NCT), even if this results in the NCI having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Parent Company’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,

expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.,

If the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities,
NCT and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Any investment retained is recognized at fair value,

NCIT represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by owners of the Parent Company and are
presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statements of financial position, separately from equity attributable to holders of the Parent Company. NCT shares
in losses even if the losses exceed the non-controlling equity interest in the subsidiary. NCI represents the equity
Ainterest in RGMA. Network, Inc. (RGMA Network), a subsidiary incorporated in the Philippines with principal
place of business at GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA Quezon City.

The consolidated financial statements include additional information about subsidiary that have NCI that are
material to the Parent Company. Management determined material partly-owned subsidiary as those with greater

than 5% of non-controlling interests and/or subsidiaries whose activities are important to the Group as at end of the
year,

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the following subsidiaries
as at fune 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

Percentage
of Ownership
Principal Activities Direct  Indirect
Entertainment Business:
Alta Productions Group, Inc. (Alta) Pre- and post-production services 106 -
Citynet Network Marketing and Television entertainment production 1060 -
Productions, Inc. (Citynet)

GMA Network Films, Inc. Film production 100 -
GMA New Media, Inc. (GNMI) Converging Technology 100 -
GMA. Worldwide (Philippines), Inc.* International marketing, handling foreign program 160 -

acquisitions and international syndication of the
Parent Company’s programs

Scenarios, Inc.** Design, construction and maintenance of sets for TV, 100 -
stage plays and concerts; transporfation setvices

RGMA Marketing and Productions, Music recording, publishing and video distribution

Inc, 100 o
RGMA Network, Inc, Radio broadcasting and management 49 -
Script2010, Inc.¥** Design, construction and maintenance of sets for TV, - 100

stage plays and concerts; transportation and
Manpower services
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Percentage

of Ownership
Principal Activities Direct  Indirect
Advertising Business:
GMA Marketing & Productions, Inc. Exclusive marketing and sales arm of the Parent 100 -
(GMPTyht*s Company’s aittime; evenis management; sales
implementation, traffic services and monitoring
Digify, Inc. **#*+* Crafiing, planning and handling advertising and other - 160
forms of promotion inclrding multi-media
productions
Others:
Media Merge Corporation*### % Business development and operations for the Parent - 100
Company’s online publishing/advertising initiatives
Ninja Graphics, [nc. ¥##%ss* Ceased commercial operations in 2004 - 51

*Ceased commercial operations in 2020

**Under liguidation

M ndirecrly owned through Citynet

¥ Ceased commercial operations in 2015

wEwxxIndivectly ovwned through GNMI

reAIIndivectly owned through GNMI; ceased commercial operations in 2026
wkEssxtIndirectly owned through Alta; ceased commercial operations in 2004

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that the Group has

adopted the following new pronouncements starting January 1, 2020. The adoption of these new standards and
amendments did not have any significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2020
®  Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, Definition of a Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and assets
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that a business can exist without including all of

the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. These amendments may impact future periods should the
Group enter into any business combinations.

= Amendments to PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

The amendments to PFRS 9 provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are
directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives
rise to uncertainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the
hedging instrument.

*  Amendments to Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8,
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states “information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about
a specific reporting entity.”

The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A

misstatement of mformation is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
PIiMATY UsSers.
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Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on March 29, 2018

The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist the standard-setters in
developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies where there is no applicable
standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

The revised Conceptual Framework includes new concepts, provides updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies some important concepts.

Amendments to PFRS 16, COVID-19-related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying the PFRS 16 requirement on lease modifications to
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. A lessee may elect not to assess
whether a rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification if it meets all of the following criteria:

= The rent concession is a direct consequence of COVID-19;
= The change in lease payments results in a revised lease consideration that is substantially the same as, or
Tess than, the lease consideration immediately preceding the change;

=  Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
Fune 390, 2021; and

¥ There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee that applies this practical expedient will account for any change in lease payments resulting from the
COVID-19 related rent concession in the same way it would account for a change that is not a lease
modification, i.e., as a variable lease payment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020. Early adoption
is permitted.

The Group adopted the amendments beginning January 1, 2020. The amendment did not have an impact in the
consolidated financial statements as there were no rent concessions during the vear.

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards
Effective Subsequent to December 31, 2020

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect
that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they become effective,

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2021

Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an
interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR):

o Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a result of IBOR
reform

o Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships =

o Relief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a
risk component

The Group shall also disclose information about:
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o The about the nature and extent of rigks to which the entity is exposed arising from financial instruments
subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those risks; and

o Their progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity 1s managing
that transition

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 and apply
retrospectively, however, the Group is not required to restate prior periods.

Effective beginning on or afier January 1, 2022

(]

Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptfual Framework

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The amendments added an exception to
the recognition principle of PFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for Habilities
and contingent Labilities that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets or Philippine-International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 21,
Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. _

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and apply
prospectively,

* Amendments to PAS 16, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds
from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and must be
applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginming of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendments.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous
or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a
contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related
to contract activities. (General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022.
Annual Improvements to PFRSy 2018-2020 Cycle

o Amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporring Standards, Subsidiary as a
First-time Adopter

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1 to measure
cumulative iranslation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent’s date of
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transition to PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or joint venture that elects to apply
paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 with earlier
adoption permitted.

o Amendment to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for Derecognition of Financial
Liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial Liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial Hability.
These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the Iender, including fees paid or
recerved by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial

liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The Group will apply the amendments to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or afier the beginning of the annual reporting peried in which
the entity first applies the amendment.

o Amendment to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of PAS 41,

An entity applies the amendment prospectively to fair value measurements on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted.

Effective beginning on or after January I, 2023

Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurvent

The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, to specify the
requirements for classifying liabilities as current or noncurrent. The amendments clarify:

o What is meant by a right to defer settlement

o That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

¢ That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

o

That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms
of a liability not impact 1ts classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and must be
applied retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current
practice and whether existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.

PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts.
This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct
msurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees
and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.
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The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful
and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering
previous iocal accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering
all relevant accounting aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

o A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

o A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted.

PFRS 17 is not applicable to the Group since it is not engaged in providing insurance nor issuing insurance
contracts.

Deferred effectivity

@

Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a
subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that a full gain
or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3.
Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however,
is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) deferred the original effective date of
January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board completes its
broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting
for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification

The Group presents assets and habilities in consolidated statement of financial position based on current/noncurrent
classification.

An asset is current when it is:

2 @ » &

expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
held primarily for the purpose of trading;
expected to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A Hability is current when:

@
&

it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
it is due to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period; or

there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
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AH other liabilities are classified as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are clagsified as noncurrent assets and liabilities, respectively.

The Group also modifies classification of prior year amounts to conform to current year’s presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from acquisition date and
that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value related disclosures for
financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where fair values are disclosed, are
summarized in the following notes:

Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions, see Note 4
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy, see Note 32
Land, see Note 15

Investment properties, see Note 16

¢ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost), see Note 32

& @ &

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

@ in the principal market for the asset or hability; or
¢ in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it {0 another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are

available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpuf that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on
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the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of

the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or Hability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

“Day 17 Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observabie current market
transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair vaiue (a “Day 17
difference) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income uniess it qualifies for recognition as some other
type of asset. In cases where the data used is not observabie, the difference between the transaction price and model
value is only recognized in profit or ioss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.
For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 17 difference amount.

Financial Instruments

A financial mstrument is any contract that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortized cost, FVOCI, and fair value through profit or loss (FVFPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied

the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCL, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPT test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group’s business mode} for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent Measurement. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

» financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
= financial assets at FVOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

* financial assets designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity instruments)
= financial assets at FVPL
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The Group does not have debt instruments at FVOCI and financial assets at FVPL as at
June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments). The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

= The financial asset is held within 2 business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the
principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and
refundable deposits (included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial
position) as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 (see Notes 8, 9, 17 and 32),

Financial Assets Designated at FVOCI (Equity Instruments). Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify itrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at FVOCT when they meet the definition
of equity under PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. -

Gains andlosses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as “Dividend
income” included under “Others - Net” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the
right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCL. Equity instruments designated at
FVOCT are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably under this category its listed and non-listed equity instruments and
investment in quoted club shares as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 (see Notes 12 and 32).

Derecognition of Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

= the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
() the Group has transferred substantialty all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset,

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of

the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Iopairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for ECLs for ail debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating BCLs. Therefore, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-leoking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other financial assets such as due from related parties and advances to associates and joint ventures, the Group
applies a general approach which measures ECL on either a 12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether a
significant increase in credit risks has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be
credit-impaired, adjusted for the effects of collateral, forward-looking factors and time value of money.

For cash and cash equivalents, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At every reporting date, the
Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group
reassesses the external credit rating of the debt instrument or comparable instruments.

The Group, in general, considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off, in whole or in part, when
the asset is considered uncollectible, the Group has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded that
it has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities

at FVPL, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction. costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables and other current liabilities (excluding payable to
government agencies, customers’ deposits and contract liabilities), short-term loans, obligations for program and
other rights, dividends payable and lease labilities.

Subsequent Measurement. The measurement of financial labilities depends on their classification, as described
below:
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Financial Liabilities at FVPL. Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging Instruments in hedge relationships as

defined by PFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVPL are designated at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in PFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at FVPL as at
Jume 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,

Loans and Borrowings. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gaing and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the Habilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR ameortization is included as “Interest expense” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

This category generally applies to trade payables and other current Babilities (excluding payable to government
agencies, customers’ deposits and contract liabilities), short-term loans, obligations for program and other rights,
dividends payable and lease liabilities (see Notes 18, 19, 20 and 32).

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities : ,

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new Hability. The difference in the respective carrying -
amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Clagsification of Financial Instruments Between Liability and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

= deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;
= exchange financial assets or financial Habilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavorable to the Group; or

= gatisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial asset to settle its
contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial Hability,

The components of issued financial instruments that contaih both liability and equity elements are accounted for
separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a
whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the Hability component on the date of issue.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The Group assesses
that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is not contingent on a future event, and is legally
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enforceable in the normal course of business, event of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Group
and all of the counterparties.

Program and Other Rights
Program and other rights with finite lives are stated at cost less amortization and impairment in value, The estimated
useful lives and the amortization method wsed depend on the manner and pattern of usage of the acquired rights.

The cost of program and other rights with multiple number of runs within a specified term is amortized using straight
Hne methed up to the date of expiry.

From September 1, 2019, the Group changed its accounting policy for amortizing the cost of program and other
rights with no definite expiration from aceelerated method based on the sum of the year’s digit of ten years with
salvage value of 10% of the total cost to straight-line method over ten vears based on the current book values so as
to allow recognition of amortization equally and to be consistent with the method of amortizing program rights with
multiple number of runs within a specified term. Management takes the view that this policy provides reliable and
more relevant information because it is reflective of the pattern of consumption of program rights.

Amortization expense is shown as “Program and other rights usage” included under “Production costs™ account in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.,

For series of rights acquired, the cost is charged to profit or loss as each series is aired on a per episode basis.

For rights intended for airing over the international channels, the cost is amortized on a straight-line basis over the
number of years indicated in the contract. :

Prepaid Production Cosis

Prepaid production costs, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” account in the consolidated
statement of financial position, represent costs paid in advance prior to the airing of the programs or episodes. These
costs include talent fees of artists and production staff and other costs directly attributable to production of programs,
These are charged to expense under “Production costs” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income upon airing of the related program or episodes. Costs related to previously taped episodes determined not
to be aired are charged to expense.

Inventories

Merchandise inventory and materials and supplies inventory, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current
assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position, is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method. Net realizable value of inventories that are for sale
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Net realizable value of inventories not held for sale is the current replacement cost.

Tax Credits

Tax credits represent claims from the government arising from airing of government commercials and
advertisements availed under Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362. Pursuant to PD No. 1362, these will be collected
in the form of tax credits which the Group can use in paying for import duties and taxes on imported broadcasting
related equipment. The tax credits cannot be used to pay for any other tax obligation to the government,

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Group’s tax credits are clagsified as current under “Prepaid
expenses and other current assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Advances to Suppliers

Advances to suppliers, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” account in the consolidated
statement of financial position, are noninterest-bearing and are generally applied to acquisition of inventories,
programs and other rights, availments of services and others.
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Property and Equinment

Property and equipment, except for Iand, are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization and
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant paris of property and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific

useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or
toss ag incurred,

Land is measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses, if any, recognized after the date of the
revaluation. Valuations are generally performed every three to five years or more frequently as deemed necessary
to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

Any revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and hence, credited to the “Revaluation
increment on land - net of tax™ account under equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of
the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case, the increase is recognized in profit or loss, A
revaluation deficit is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same
asset recognized in the “Revaluation increment on land - net of tax” account.

Depreciation and amortization are computed on & straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the
assets:

Buildings, towers and improvements 11-20 years
Antenna and transmitter systems and broadcast equipment  5-10 years
Communication and mechanical equipment 3-5 years
Transportation equipment 4-5 years
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation and amortization are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further depreciation and
amortization is credited or charged to current operations.

Construction in progress is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction in
progress is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of real estate held for capital appreciation and rental.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and
impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value,

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over 11-20 years.

The remaining useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each financial vear-end.

L.



Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment properties
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gains or

losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in profit or oss in the period of
derecognition. ‘

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the
date of change in use. I owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Investment in Artworks
Investment in artworks, included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial
position, is stated at cost less any impairment in value,

Software Costs
Costs incurred in the acquisition and customization of new software, included under “Other noncurrent assets”

account in the consolidated statement of financial position, are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis
over three to ten years.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying values of program and other rights, prepaid production costs, deferred production costs, tax credits,
investments and advances, property and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, software costs and
mmvestment in artworks are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, and if the carrying value exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are considered impaired and are writien down to their recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of these nonfinancial assets is the greater of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less
cost to sell or value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. The fair value less cost to sell is the
amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less cost to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU)
to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss, except for land at revalued amount where the revaluation
is taken to OCT, is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
vears. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization charges
are adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life. For land at revalued amounts, the reversal of impairment is also recognized in
OCT up to the amount of any previous revaluation,

In the case of investrents in associate and interests in joint ventures, after application of the equity method, the
Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investments in associate and interests in joint ventures. The Group determines at each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that the investments in associate and interests in joint ventures are impaired. If this
1s the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable amount
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of investments in associate and inferests in joint ventures, and the acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the
consolidated staternent of comprehensive income.

Investments in an Associaie and Joint Ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Sigmificant influence is the power to

participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an

arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

-

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in 1ts associate and joint ventures are accounted for using the eguify method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint vemture is initially recognized at cost. The

carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate
or joint venture since the acquisition date.

Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is imcluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not
tested for impairment individually. :

The Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture is included in profit or loss. Any
change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change
recognized directly in the equity of the asseciate or joint venture, the Group recognizes its share of any chenges,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, Unrealized gaing and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and
NCI in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture,

If the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint
venture, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group,

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an impairment
loss on its investment in associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is
objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. 1f there is such evidence, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or
joint venture and its carrying valoe, and then recognizes the loss under “Equity in net earnings (losses) of joint
ventures” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate
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or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly atiributable to the
issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of
considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as additional paid-in capital.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, net of any dividend declaration, adjusted for the effects of changes in accounting policies
as may berequired by PFRS’ transitional provisions.

Treasury Stocks and Underlying Shares of the Acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs)

The Parent Company’s own reacquired equity instruments are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the
Group’s own equity instruments.

Each PDR entitles the holder to the economic interest of the underlying common share of the Parent Company. The

Parent Company’s ownership of the PDRs are presented similar to treasury shares in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Dividends on Common Shares of the Parent Company
Dividends on common shares are recognized as liability and deducted from equity when approved by the BOD of

the Parent Company. Dividends for the year that are approved after reporting period are dealt with as an event after
reporting period.

Revenue Recognition

a. PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine
if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A performance
obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue recognized is the amount
allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Advertising Revenue. Revenue is recognized in the period the advertisements are aired.
Payments received for advertisements before broadceast (pay before broadcast) are recognized as income on the

dates the advertisements are aired. Prior to liquidation, these are classified as uneamed revenue under “Contract

liabilities” under “Trade payables and other current labilities” account, in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Goods received in exchange for airtime usage pursuant to exchange deal contracts executed between the Group
and its customers are recorded at fair market values of assets recetved. Fair market value is the current market
price.
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Tax credits on aggrepate airtime credits from government sales availed of under PD No. 1362 are recognized
as revenue when there is reasonable certainty that these can be used to pay duties and taxes on imported
broadeasting related equipment.

Subscription Revenue. Subscription fees are recognized over the subscripiion period in accordance with the
terms of the subscription agreements.

Sale of goods. Sale of goods pertain to sale of set-top boxes, digital TV mobile receivers and other
merchandises. Revenue is recognized at a point in time when delivery has taken place and transfer of control
has been completed. These are stated net of sales discounts.

Revenue from Distribution and Content Provisioning. Revenue is recognized upon delivery of the licensed
content to customers.

Production Revenue. Production revenue is recognized at a point in time when project-related services are
rendered.

Commission from Artist Center. Revenue is recognized as revenue on an accrual basis in accordance with the
terms of the related marketing agreements,

b. Revenue Recognition Outside the Scope of PFRS 15

Rental Income. Revenue from lease of property and eguipment and investment properties is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend Income. Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accroes, taking into account the effective yield on the
asset.

Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of Joint Ventures. The Group recognizes its share in the net income or loss of

joint ventures proportionate to the equity in the economic shares of such joint ventures, in accordance with the
equity method.

Other Income. Other income is recognized when there is an incidental economic benefit, other than the usual
business operations, that will flow to the Group through an increase in asset or reduction in liability that can be
measured reliably.

Contract Balances

Trade Receivables. A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional

(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to the accounting
policies of Financial Instriznents section.

Contract Assets. A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract Liabilities. A contract lability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when
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the payment is made or the payment is due, whichever is earlier. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract,

Incremental Costs 1o Obtain a Contract

The Group pays sales commissions to its account executives for each contract that they obtain for advertising
agreements with customers. The Group has elected to apply the optional practical expedient for costs to obtain a
contract which allows the Group to immediately expense sales commissions (presented as part of “Marketing
expense’” under “General and administrative expenses” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income) because the amortization period of the asset that the Group otherwise would have used is less than one
year.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other

borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Expenses
Expenses, presented as “Production costs”, “Cost of sales”, and “General and administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, are recognized as incurred,

Pension and Other Long-Term Fmplovee Benefits

The Parent Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering permanent
employees. Other entities are covered by Republic Act (R.A\} 7641, otherwise known as “The Philippine
Retirement Pay Law”, which provides for qualified employees to receive an amount equivalent to a certain
percentage of monthly salary at normal retirement age. In addition, the Group has agfeed to pay the cash equivalent
of the accumulated unused vacation leave of the employees upon separation from the Group. '

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Defined Benefit Plans. The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for
any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling.

The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plan is determined using the projected umit credit method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability), are recognized immediately in the statement of financial position
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur,
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit Hability or asset. The Group

recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “Production costs” and “General and
administrative expenses” accounts in consolidated statements of comprehensive income (by function):
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e Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements.

s Net interest expense or income

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund. Fair value of plan assets is based on
market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by
discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan
assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period
unti] the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair vatue of the plan assets is higher than the present value of
the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit obligation
is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is virtually certain.

Leases starting January 1, 2019 - Unon Adoption of PFRS 16
Leases. The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract i, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as Lessee. The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

o Right-of-use Assets. The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumnulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-.
of-use assets includes the amount of lease lLabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term as follow:

Land 2 to 12 years
Buildings, studio and office spaces 2 to 6 years

Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment,

e Lease Liabilities. At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 1o be paid under residual value guaraniees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the optivi to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense in
the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the
commencerment date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a

23] -



modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

e Shori-term Leases. The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (ie,,
those Icases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date or initial application of

PFRS 16 and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognized as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases are recognized as income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over

the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases before January 1. 2019 - Prior to Adoption of PFRS 16
The determination of whether the arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement depends on the use of a specific asset or assets or

the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after the inception of the lease, if any, if
the following applies:

a. There 1s a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was initially
included in the lease term;

¢. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or

d. There is substantial change to the asset.

Where the reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change in
circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (&), (¢), or (d) above, and at the date of renewal or
extension period for scenario {b).

The Group determines whether arrangements contain a lease to which lease accounting must be applied. The costs
of the agreements that do not take the legal form of a lease but convey the right to use an asset are separated into
lease payments if the entity has the control of the use or access to the asset, or takes essentially all of the outputs of
the asset. The said lease component for these arrangements is then accounted for as finance or operating lease.

Group as Lessee. Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease pavments are recognized as expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases are recognized as income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over

the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

Foretgn Currency-denominated Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency exchange rate at the date of the
transactions. Monetary agsets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency closing exchange rate at financial reporting period. All differences are taken to profit or loss in the
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consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign cwrrency arve translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. For income tax purposes, foreign exchange gains and losses are treated as
taxable income or deductible expenses when realized,

Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected 1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at reporting period.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in profit or loss.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at reporting period

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of excess
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss
carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences and the caryforward benefits of excess MCIT over RCIT and unused NOLCO can be
utilized, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that i is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be

utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting period and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

s where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or Lability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit; and

¢ inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated Wlth investments in subsidiaries, associates and inferests
in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset

is realized or the lability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to be enacted or substantially enacted at the
reporting period.



Deferred fax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Creditable Withholding Taxes. Creditable withholding taxes represent amounts withheld by the Group’s customers
and is deducted from the Group’s income tax payable.

Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services {output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases of goods or
services (input VAT), the excess isrecognized as payable in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of goods and/or services

(output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the consohdated statement of financial position to the extent
of the recoverable amount.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of “Prepaid

expenses and other current assets™ or “Trade payables and other current liabilities” accounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Barnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Parent
Company, net of income attributable to preferred shares, by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the vear, after considering the retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared, if any.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net mcome for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Parent
Company (inclusive of income attributable to preferred shares) by the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding during the year, plus the weighted average number of common shares that would be issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential common shares.

Segment Reporting

For management purposes, the Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately into television
and radio airfime, international subscriptions and other business activities, Such business segments are the basis
upon which the Group reports its primary segment information. The Group considers television and radio
operations as the major business segment. The Group operates in two geographical areas where it derives its
tevenue. Financial information on business segments is presented in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provigions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision
10 be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies

Contingent labilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes
to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
1s remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes to consohdated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits 1s probable,

-34.



Events after Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the reporting period
(adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed m the notes to consolidated financial statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and related notes at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these judgments, estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation of Entities in which the Group holds less than Majority of Voting Rights. The Group considers that
it controis RGMA Network even though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights. This is because the Group is
the single largest shareholder of RGMA Network with a 49% equity interest. The remaining 51% of the equity
shares in RGMA. Network are owned by several parties. Since September 27, 1995, which is the date of
mcorporation of RGMA Network, there is no history of the other shareholders collaborating to exercise their votes
collectively or to outvote the Group. The carrying amount of NCI as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020
amounted to 105,68 million and £72.36 million, respectively.

Assessment of Significant Influence over the Investee. Thé Parent Company holds 25% ownership interest in Optima
Digital, Inc. as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020. Even with more than 20% voting rights, management
assessed that the Parent Company does not have the power to participate in the policy-making processes, including
decisions to affect its returns in the form of dividends. Further, the Parent Company does not have the ability to
participate in the financial and operational policies decision-making of the investee to affect its relevant activities.

Determination of Lease Term of Contracts with Renewal and Termination Options — Group as a Lessee (Starting
January 1, 2019 - Upon Adoption of PFRS 16). The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term
of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably cerfain o be
exercised, or any pertods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgment
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to

renew or to terminate {e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant castomization to the
eased asset). '

The Group did not include the renewal period as part of the lease term for its leases as these are subject to mutual
agreement and are not reasonably certain to be exercised. Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options
are included as part of the lease term only when they are reascnably certain not to be exercised.

Operating Leases - Group as Lessor. The Group has entered into various lease agreements as lessor. The Group

had determined that the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying property were retained by the Group.
Accordingly, the leases are ciassified as an operating lease.
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Total rental income amounted to #1.59 million and B1.54 million in June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note
28).

Operating Leases - Group as Lessee (Prior to January I, 2019 - Prior to Adoption of PFRS 16). The Group has
entered into various lease agreements as a lessee. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, that the lessors retain all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases,

Rental expense charged to operations amounted fo B148.68 million and 2179.77 million as of June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively (see Notes 25, 26 and 29).

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur,

Estimating the Incremental Borrowing Rate (Starting January I, 2019 - Upon Adoption of PFRS 16). The Group
cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
n a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such ag the counterparty’s stand-alone credit rating).

The Group’s lease liability amounted to 92,79 million and 76.86 million as at June 30, 2021 and December 31,
2020, respectively (see Note 29),

Estimating Allowance for ECL, The following information explains the inputs, assumptions and techniques used
by the Group in estimating ECL for trade receivables:

e Simplified approach for trade receivables

The Group uses a simplified approach for calculating ECL on receivables through the use of provision matrix
to calculate ECLs. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of customer segment that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group then
calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (e.g, gross domestic product, inflation rate, unemployment rate) are
expected fo deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the Group’s
operating segments, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-tooking estimates are analyzed.

s Definition of default for trade receivables

The Group defines a trade receivable as in defanlt, when it meets one or more of the following criteria:
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e The counterparty is experiencing financial difficulty or is insolvent

s The receivable is more than 360 days past due. The determination of the period is based on the Group’s
practice and agreement with their customers within the industry.

e Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group considers a range of relevant forward-looking macro-economic assumptions for the determination
of unbiased general industry adjustments that support the calculation of ECLs. A broad range of forward-
looking information are considered as economic inputs such as the gross domestic product, inflation rate,
unemployment rates and other economic indicators.

The macroeconomic factors are aligned with information used by the Group for other purposes such as strategic
planning and budpeting.

The Group identifies and documents key drivers of credit risk and credit losses of each portfolio of financial
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic
variables and credit risk and credit losses.

Predicted relationship between the key macro-economic indicators and default and loss rates on various
portfolios of financial assets have been developed based on analyzing historical data over the past 3 years. The
methodologies and assumptions including any forecasts of future economic conditions are reviewed regularly.

¢ (Grouping of instruments for losses measured on collective basis

For expected credit loss provisions modelled on.a collective basis, a grouping of exposures is performed on the
basis of shared risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within a segmentation are homogeneous. The
Group segmentized its receivables based on the type of customer (e.g., corporate and individuals).

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit 1oss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future,

Provision for ECL amounted to 0.25 million as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. The allowance for ECL amounted
to 766.64 million and £#766.52 million as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. The carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables amounted to 10,266.61 million and £10,466.54 million as at June 30,
2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively (see Note 9), :

Classification and Amortization of Program and Other Rights. Portions of program and other rights are classified
as current and noncurrent assets. Current portion represents those expected to be aired any time within its normal
operating cycle, whereas the noncurrent portion represents those without definite expiration.

From September 1, 2019, the Group changed its accounting policy for amortizing the cost of program and other
rights with no definite expiration date from accelerated method based on the sum of the year’s digit of ten years
with salvage value of 10% of the total cost to straight-line method over ten years based on the current book values
50 as to allow recognition of amortization equally and to be consistent with the method of amortizing program rights
with specific number of runs within a specified term. Management takes the view that this policy provides reliable
and more relevant information because it is reflective of the actual marging of business units,

The Group estimates the amortization of program and other rights with finite Hves using straight line method up to
the date of expiry, which is the manner and pattern of usage of the acquired rights. In addition, estimation of the
amortizalion of program and other rights is based on the Group's experience with such rights. It is possible,
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however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by
changes in the factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances.

Program and other rights usage amounted to 482.83 miliion and #330.56 million for the periods ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 25). Program and other rights, net of accumulated impairment loss of 82.70
million, amounted to £1,446,92 million and 942,97 million as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively {see Note 10).

Estimating Allowance for lnventory Losses. The Group provides allowance for inventory losses whenever the net
realizable value becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price

levels or other causes. The allowance account is reviewed periodically to reflect the accurate valuation of the
inventories.

The carrying value of merchandise inventory and materials and supplies inventory, included under “Prepaid
expenses and other current assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position, amounted to B906.23
million and P220.55 million as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively (see Note 11). There were
no provisions for inventory losses as of June 30, 2021 and 2020,

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Egquipment, Software Costs and Investment Properties. The Group
estimates the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment properties based on the period
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment,
software costs and investment propertics are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on
the use of the assets. In addition, estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and
investment properties is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
experience with similar assets. Tt is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected
by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of
recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances., A reduction in
the estimated useful Hives of property and equipment, software costs and investment properties would increase the
recorded general and administrative expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.

There has been no change in the Group’s estimate of useful lives of its property and equipment, software costs and
investment properties in as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,

Total depreciation and amortization expense for the periods ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 amounted to P275.00
million and #274.19 million, respectively (see Notes 14, 16, 17, 25 and 26).

Revaluation of Land. The Group engages an accredited appraiser to determine the fair value of the land used in
operations, Fair value i3 determined by reference to market-based evidence adjusted based on certain elements of
comparison. The fair value amount would differ if the Group made different judgments and estimates or utilized a
different basis for determining fair value.

Valuations from an accredited appraiser are performed every three to five years or more frequently as deemed
tiecessary to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

In 2021 and 2020, there is no additional revaluation increment on land due to msignificant movements in the fair
value of the land. There is a revaluation increment on land in 2018 amounting to 990.37. The revalued amount
of land, which is classified under “Property and equipment” account in the statements of financial position,

amounted to #2,850.90 million and $2,803.20 million as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively (see
Note 15). :
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Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. For prepaid production costs, tax credits, investments and advances, property
and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, program and other rights, investments in artworks,
deferred production costs and software costs, impairment testing is performed whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
= gignificant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
= significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;

= significant negative industry or economic trends; and
2 obsolescence or physical damage of an asset.

The Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and the asset’s value in use. Recoverable

amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Group did not identify any indicator of impairment on its
nonfinancial assets, hence, no impairment tests were catried out.

The carrying values of nonfinancial assets as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 follow:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

{Unaudited) {Audited)
Land at revalued amounts (see Note 15) 2,850,896,481 2,803,196,184
Property and equipment - at cost (see Note 14) 2,756,267,814 : 2,588,113,704
Program and other rights (see Note 10) . 1,446,921,685 : 942,966,005
Prepaid production costs {see Note 11) 383,273,024 428,553,144
Investments and advances (see Note 13) 184,627,901 184,524,315
Tax credits (see Note 11) 164,775,049 174,199,496
Software costs (see Note 17) 105,958,231 97,071,541
Right-of-use assets (see Note 29) 110,570,215 89,268,276
Investment propertics (see Note 16) 34,178,640 34,869,834
Investment in artworks (see Note 17) 16,186,136 10,186,136
Deferred production costs {see Note 17) 1,116,132 1,061,628

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each reporting date
and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no Jonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. The Group’s assessment on the recognition of
deferred tax assets on deductible temporary difference and carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT over
RCIT is based on the projected taxable income in the following periods.

Pension and Other Employee Benefits. The determination of the Group’s obligatioh and cost of pension benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts. Due to the

complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions,

7 Pension lability amounted to 25,189.86 million and $4,915.13 million as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively.

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. Certain financial assets and financial
liabilities are carrted and disclosed at fair value, which requires extensive use of accounting estimates and
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judgments. While significant components of fair value measurement were determined using verifiable objective
evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates and interest rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the
Group utilized a different vatuation methodology. Any changes in the assumptions could affect the fair value of

these financial assets and financial liabilities. The fair value of financial assets and Habilities are enumerated in
Note 32.

Determination of Fair Value of Investment Properties. PFRS requires disclosure of fair value of investment
properties when measured at cost.

The Group used the services of an independent professional appraiser in estimating the fair value of properties. The
appraisers conducted an actual inspection of the property and considered the following in the study and analyses in
arriving at the estimate of fair value: (a) extent, character and utility of the property; (b) sales and holding prices of
similar properties; and (¢) highest and best use of the property. The description of valuation techniques used and

key inputs to fair valuation of investment properties are epumerated in Note 16 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Contingencies. The Group is currently involved in various claims and legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable
costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with legal counsel handling the defense in
these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results. The Group currently does not believe that these
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position.

Seasonality or Cyclicality of Interim Operations

The Group’s operations are not generally affected by any seasonality or cyclicality.

Nature and Amount of Changes irn Estimates

2020 figures were restated to conform to the current period’s presentation.

Segment Information

Business Seements

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on its products and services and has
three reportable segments, as follows:

" The television and radio segment, which engages in television and radio broadeasting activities and which

generates revenue from sale of national and regional advertising time.

The international subscription segment which engages in subscription arrangements with international cable
companies,

®  Other businesses which include movie production, consumer products and other services.

The Executive Committee, the chief operating decision maker, and Management monitor the operating results of
its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on net income or loss and is measured consistently with net
income or loss in the consolidated financial statements. On a consolidated basis, the Group’s performance is
evaluated based on consoclidated net income for the year.
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Geographical Segments

The Group operates in two major geographical segments - local and international. Local refers to revenues earned
in the Philippines, the home country. Significant portion of the revenues earned locally pertain to television and
radio airtime. International refers to revenues camed in United States and in other locations (which include Middle
East, Europe, Australia, Canada, Guam, Singapore, Hongkong and Japan). The Group ties up with cable providers
to bring local television programming outside the Philippines.

The Group’s revenues are mostly generated in the Philippines, which is the Group’s country of domicile,

Noncurrent assets consist of property and equipment, land at revalued amounts, investment properties and intangible
assets which are all located in the Philippines.

The Group does not have a single external customer whose revenue accounts for 10% or more of the Group’s
Tevenues.

Inter-segtent Transactions

Segment revenues, segment expenses and segment results include transfers among business segments and among
geographical segments. The transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices charged to unrelated customers
for similar services. Such transfers are eliminated upon consolidation.

Measurement Basis

The amount of segment assets and liabilities and segment profit or loss are based on measurement principles that

are similar to those used in measuring the assets and liabilities and profit or loss in the consolidated financial
statements, which is in accordance with PFRS.

Please refer to FExhibit 1.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

June 30, 2021  December 31, 2020

{Unaudited) {Audited)
Cash on hand and n banks _ 2,885,869,946 2,892,545,281
Short-term placements 622,571,556 322,271,983
3,508,441,502 3,214,817,264

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods
of up to nine months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from bank deposits and short-term investments amounted to 26.69 million and B11.84
million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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9. Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

(Unaudited} {Audited)
Trade:
Television and radio airtime 10,422,484,935 10,642,475,005
Subscription receivable 262,581,381 264,493,491
Others 197,307,356 169,931,862
Nontrade:
Advances to officers and employees 7,466,388 6,866,866
Others 143,411,359 149,288 785
11,033,251,413 11,233,056,009
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 766,643,314 766,518,314
10,266,608,099 10,466,537,695
Trade Receivables

Television and Radio Airtime. Television and radio airtime receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generally

on a 60-90 days ferms upon receipt of invoice by the customer. Invoicing normally takes around 30 days from
aring,

Television and radio airtime receivables include unbilled airtime receivables, arising when advertisements have
been aired during the year but billing or acceptance by the customer has been delayed due to time lag in
completing all required documents. ‘

Subscriptions Receivable. Subscriptions receivable include receivables pertaining to revenue generated from

international channel subscriptions and advertisements. These are noninterest-bearing and normally collected
within 30-60 days.

Other Trade Receivables. Other trade receivables are nonmterest-bearing and are generally on 60 to 90-day terms
upon receipt of invoice by the customers.

Nontrade Receivables

Advances to Officers and Employees and Other Nontrade Receivables. Advances to officers and employees and
other nontrade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are normally collected within the next financial year.

Allowance for ECL

The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts on trade receivables are as follows:

June 30, 2021

Ceorporate Individual Total
Balance at beginning of the year 756,208,776 16,309,538 766,518,314
Provision for the period (see Note 26) 125,600 - 125,660
Balance at end of the period 756,333,776 18,309,538 766,643,314
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December 31, 2020

Corporate Individual Total
Balnce at begmning of the vear 539,184,505 10,455,097 549,639,602
Provision (reversal) for the year 347,341,442 (145,559 347,195,883
Write-off (130,317,171 - (130,317,171)
Balince at end of the year 756,208,776 10,309,538 766,518,314
10. Program and Other Rights
Details and movements in this account are as foliows:
June 30, 2021
{(Unaudited)
Program and  Story/Format Program Rights -
Film Rights Rights Incidentals Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning of period 894,413,394 27,147,444 24,107,427 945,668,265
Additions 931,744,373 956,209 54,086,559 986,787,132
Program and other rights usage (see Nott (426,333,621) (1,832,641) (54,665,190} (482,831,452)
Balance at end of period - 1,399.824,146 26,271,003 23,528,796 1,449,623,945
Accumulated impairment in value . (2,702,260} - - (2,702,260)
1,397,121,88¢6 26,271,003 23,528,796 1,446,921,685 .
Less noncurrent portion 191,946,604 - - 191,946,604
1,205,175,282 26,271,003 23,528,796 1,254,975,081
December 31,2020
{Audited)
Programand  Story/Format Program Rights -
Fiim Rights Rights Incidentals Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning of period 083,996,591 30,699,307 26,796,291 1,041,492,189
Additiong 536,438,931 6,724,630 64,428,322 607,591,883
Program and other rights usage (626,022,128) (10,276,493) (67,117,186) (703,415807)
Balance at end of period 894,413,394 27,147.444 24,107,427 945,668,265
Accumuiated impairment in value - {2,702,260) - - (2,702,260)
891,711,134 27147444 24,107,427 942,066,005
Less noncurrent portion 192,229,776 - - 162,229,776
699,481,358 27,147 444 24,107.427 750,736,229
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11. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

This account consists of*

Fune 36, 2021

December 31, 2020

(Unaudited) {Audited)
Merchandise inventory 906,225,967 220,554,349
Advances to suppliers 576,317,963 844,130,982
Prepaid production costs 383,273,624 428,553,144
Input VAT 238,321,164 191,780,897
Prepaid expenses 212,264,146 82,521,474
Tax credits 104,775,049 174,199,496
Creditable withholding taxes 151,515,313 55,821,536
Materials and supplies inventory - at cost 12,249,441 16,500,558
Others 4,522,348 252,870
2,589,664.355 2,014,315,306

Merchandise inventory consists mainly of set-top boxes, digital TV mobile receiver and other merchandises for
sale by the Group. In 2020, the Group launched the GMA Affordabox, a digital box which allows users to receive
clear pictures and scunds in their television sets through digital transniission. Cost of sales related to digital boxes
amounted to B200.75 million and £65.76 million as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively.

Advances to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are generally applied to acquisition of inventories and fixed
assets and availment of services within the next financial year.

Prepaid pfoduction represents costs paid in advance prior to the airing of the programs or episodes. The Group
expects to air the related programs or episodes within the next financial year.

Input VAT pertains to VAT on purchase of goods and services including capital acquisitions, a portion of which
is realizable within the next twelve months.

Prepaid expenses include prepayments for rentals, insurance and other expenses.

Tax credits represent claims of the Parent Company from the government arising from airing of government

commercials and advertisements. The Parent Company expects to utilize these tax credits within the next
financial year.

Creditable withholding taxes represent amounts withheld by the Company’s customers and is deducted from the
Company’s income tax payable.

Materials and supplies inventory includes Group’s office supplies, spare parts and production materials,
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12. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

This account consists of the following:

June 38, 2021  December 31, 2020

{Unaundited) {Audited)
Listed equity instruments 117,273,005 117,273,005
Non-listed equity instruments 75,005,083 74,859,083

192,282,088 192,132,088

Investment in equity instruments pertains to shares of stock and club shares which are not held for trading. The
Group assessed the equity instruments to be strategic in nature,

IP B-Games

In 2015, IP E-Games Ventures, Inc. (IPE) issued 13 billion of its own common shares to the Group in exchange
of the Group’s investment in X-Piay Online Games Incorporated (X-Play) and in settlement of B30.00 million
advances and P50.00 million airtime credits granted by the Group to X-Play. At initial recognition, the Group
recognized at fair value the IPE shares as AFS financial assets amounting to 130.00 million.

Of the £50.00 million airtime credits, B22.00 million has not been implemented at date of exchange and therefore
was recognized by the Group as unearned revenue presented as “Contract liabilities”, included as part of trade
payables and other current liabilities as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

13.

Investments and Advances

This account consists oft

June 30, 202 December 31, 2020

{(Unaudited) {Audited)
Investments m an associate and interests in joint ventures 83,982,574 83,982,574
Permanent advances in an associate (see Note 23) 100,645,327 100,541,741

184,627,941 184,524,315

The movements in the accounts are as follows:

June 38, 2021  December 31, 2020

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Investments in an associate and joint ventures
Acquisition cost -
Balance at begmning and end of period 131,722,656 131,722,056
Accumulated equity in net losses:
Balance at beginnimg of period ' (47,735,482) (51,648,222)
Equity in net earnings during the period - 3,908,740
Balance at end of period (47,739.482) (47,739,482)
83,982,574 83,982,574
Forward
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June 38, 2021 December 31, 2020

{(Unaudited) (Audited)
Advances to an associaie:
Balance at beginning of period 97,722,016 97,121,830
Advances during the period 566,346 600,186
Balance at end of period 98,288,362 97,722,016
Advances to joint ventures:
Balance at beginning of period 2,819,725 2,571,085
Advances (Collections) during the period {462,760) 248,640
Balance at end of period 2,356,965 2,819.725
Total investments and advances 184,627,901 184,524,315

The ownership interests in an associate and joint ventures, which were all incorporated in the Philippines, and are
accounted for under the equity method, ag at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 follows:

Percentage of

Principal Activities Ownership
Associate - . Direct  Indirect
Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corporation
(Mont-Aire) Real Estate 49 -
Joint Ventures:
INQ7 Interactive, Inc. (INQ7)* Internet Publishing 50 -
Philippine Entertainment Portal (PEP)** Internet Publishing - 30
Gamespan, Inc. (Gamespan)** Betting Games - 50

*Not operational,
**Indirect investment through GNMIL

The carrying values of investments and the related advances as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are as
follows:

June 30,2021
Advances
Investments (see Note 23) Total
Associate - Mont-Aire 38,350,619 98,288,362 136,638,981
Joint ventures:
Gamespan 8,947,966 1,959,670 16,987,636
PEP 36,683,989 397,295 37,681,284
45,631,955 2,356,965 47,988,920
83,982,574 100,645,327 184,627,901
December 31, 2020
Advances
Tnvestments {see Note 23} Total
Associate - Mont-Aire 38,350,619 97,722,016 136,072,635
Joint ventures:
Gamespan 8,947,966 1,959,670 10,907,636
PEP 36,683 989 860,055 37,544 044
45,631,955 2,819,725 48,451,680
83,982,574 100,541,741 184,524,315

The associate and joint ventures are not listed in any public stock exchanges.
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PEP

On Aprit 16, 2007, the Group and Summit Publishing, Co. entered into a sharcholder’s agreement for the
establishment of PEP. The joint venture was organized to design, conceptualize, operate and maintain websites
that make available all kinds of show business, entertainment and celebrity information, video or pictures in the
internet worldwide web or other forms of seamless communication.

No share in net earnings (losses) of PEP was recognized for the six months period ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,

Gamespan
On March 22, 2012, the Group, through GNMI, execuied a Shareholder’s Agreement with Manila Jockey Club
(MIC) for the establishment of Gamespan, a joint venture corporation. The joint venture was organized to operate

and manage the hardware and software owned by MJC, set-up new media infrastructure for offering and taking
bets in horse racing and other sports.

Gamespan has not started its commercial operations since its establishment. In 2014, the Group and MIC agreed
to terminate its shareholder’s agreement and to close Gamespan. As at June 30, 2021, the process of cessation of

Gamespan is still ongoing. Since Gamespan already ceased its operation, the Group did not recognize any share
in net earnings in 2021 and 2020,

INQT

Losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess of the Group’s carrying value of investment were
applied against its advances to the Parent Company thereby reducing both advances and investments fo zero as at
Fune 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, INQ7 ceased operations in 2007, In 2013, INQ7 submitted a request to
liquidate its assets to SEC. The hquidation is still ongoing as at June 30, 2021,

The Group believes that its interests in joint ventures are not individually material.

Mont-aire

The table below shows the condensed financial information of Momt-Aire as at June 30, 2021 and December 31,
2020, respectively:

Current assets B59,665,203
Noncurrent assets ' 107,619,616
167,284,819
Current liabilities 1,066,320
Noncurrent liabilities 105,691,504
106,757,824
Net assets 60,526,995
Proportion of the Company's ownership 49%
Carrying amount of investment P29 658,228

Mont-Aire ceased commercial operations in 2009. Assets include real estate and parcels of land with an aggregate
cost of 21.05.08 million and fair market value of B158.64 million, as determined by an accredited appraiser as at
June 3, 2019, enough to cover for the carrying amount of the Group’s investment in Mont-Ajre. Management
believes that there are no events or changes in circumstances indicating a significant change in the fair value of
the abovementioned properties from the last appraisal made.

i4.

Property and Eguipment at Cost

Please refer to Exhibit 3 for the rollforward analvsis of property and equipment at cost.
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Construction in progress pertains to the costs incurred for installation of equipment, signal strengthening of
transmitters nationwide and construction/improvement of studios and stations in the regions.

The reclassification relates to software that were transferred to other noncurrent assets amounting to £6.32 million
in December 31, 2020,

The Group leases out a portion of its property and equipment at cost. Total rental income recognized for the
leased portion amounted to B1.59 million and $1.54 million for the period ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively (see Note 28).

The Group disposed various property and equipment as at June 30, 2021 and 2020 resulting to the recognition of
gain on sale amounting to P44.31 million and 3.40 million, respectively (see Note 28).

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, no property and equipment have been pledged as collateral or
security for any of the Group’s liabilities.

15.

Land at Revalued Amounts

The following are the details of this account:

June 36, 2621 December 31, 2020

{Unaudited) {Audited)

Cost 497,317,642 359,617,345
Revaliation increment 2,443,578,839 2,443,578,839
2,850.896,481 2,803,196.184

Land used in operations was last appraised on November 19, 2018 by an accredited firm of appraisers and is
valued in terms of its highest and best use. While the fair value of the land was not determined as at June 30,
2021, the Group’s management believes that the fair values as at December 31, 2018 approximate the fair
values as af June 30, 2021,

The fair value was determined using the “Market Data Approach” as determined by independent
professionally qualified appraisers. The fair value represents the amount that would be received to sell the
property in an orderly transaction between market participants at the date of valuation. The description of
valuation techniques used and key inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Significant
Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range
Land Market comparable assets Price per square metre P200-R97,000

The fair value is categorized under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date in accordance with International Valuation Standards.

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, no land has been pledged as collateral or security for any of the

Group’s liabilities and the Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its land and no contractual
obligation to purchase, construct or develop land or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.
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16. Investment Properties

June 30, 2621

{Unaudited)
Tandand  Buildings and
Emprovements Imprevements Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning and end of period 23,761,823 72,276,684 96,038,507
Accumulated depreciation;
Balance at beginning of period - 57,316,032 57,316,032
Depreciation during the peried - 691,194 691,194
Balance at end of period ~ 58,007,226 58,007,226
Accumulated impairment:
Balance at beginning and end of period - 3,852,641 3,852,641
23,761,823 10,416,817 34,178,640
December 31, 2020
{Audited)
Land and Buildings and
Improvements Improvements Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning and end of period 23,761,823 72,276,684 96,038 507
Accumulated depreciation: '
Balance at beginning of period ‘ - 55,933,645 55,933,645
Deypreciation during the period - 1,382,387 1,382,387
Balance at end of period ‘ - 57,316,032 - 57316,032
Accumulated impairment:
Balance at beginning and end of period - 3,852,641 3,852,641
23,761,823 11,108,011 34,869,834

The Group recognized provision for impairment in value of certain investment properties amounting to 22.05

million in 2018. Management believes that the carrying values after impairment approximate its recoverable
values.

The fair value of investment properties owned by the Group amounted to 2203.90 million as at June 30, 2021 and
December 31, 2020. The land was last appraised on November 19, 2018 by an accredited appraiser and was
valued in terms of its highest and best use. While the fair value of the land was not determined as at June 30,

2021, the Group’s management believes that the fair values as at December 31, 2018 approximate the fair values
as at June 30, 2021.

The fair value was arrived at through the use of the “Market Data Approach”. The fair value represents the

amount that would be received to sell the property in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
date of valuation.

The description of the valuation technigues used and key inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

.

Significant
Valuation Technique  Unobservable Inputs Range
Land Market comparable assets  Price per square metre B1.400-23,500

Building for lease ~ Market comparable assets Price per square metre  £22,000-2117,000
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The fair value is categorized under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the price that would be

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. :

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, no investment properties have been pledged as collateral or security
for any of the Group’s liabilities and the Group has no restriction on the realizability of its investment properties

and no contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance
and enhancements.

17.

Other Noncurrenf Assets

This account consists of:

June 30, 2821 December 31, 2020

{Unaudited) (Audited)
Software costs 105,958,231 97,071,541
Restricted cash 42,348,999 42,348,999
Deferred mput VAT 36,575,462 30,772,633
Refundable deposits (see Notes 31 and 32) 21,544,629 21,427,422
Investments in artworks 10,186,136 10,186,136
Advances to contractors 13,255,266 15,704,899
Guarantee deposits 2,545,687 6,412,119
Development costs ‘ 5,767,800 5,767,800
Facilities 1,721,981 2,359,591
Deferred production costs ' ‘ 1,116,132 1,061,628
Others 2,205,882 2,696,079

240,226,265 235,808,847

Sofiware cost relates to software applications and website development costs which provide an edge on the
Group’s online presence and other software issues.

Restricted cash pertains to time deposits under the custody of the courts as a collateral for pending litigation,

Deferred input VAT pertains to the VAT on the Group’s acquisitions of capital goods exceeding

P1.00 million in any given month which are to be amortized over the 60 months or the life of the asset, whichever
is shorter.

Advances to contractors pertain to advance payments made by the Parent Company for the construction of assets
to be classified as property and equipment.

Guarantee and other deposits consist of the Meralco refund and refundable rental deposits used for Parent
Company’s programs,

Investments in artworks are the paintings and other work of art usually displayed in the Parent Company’s
hallways.

w

Facilities relate to the paid deposit for facilities used for productions by the Group.

Deferred production costs pertain to the costs incurred in relation fo the production of music compact discs and

are measured at cost upon recognition. Deferred production costs are being amortized as the related compact
discs are sold.
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The movements in software costs follow:

Jumne 30, 2021

December 31, 2020

{Unaudited) {Audited)
Cost:
Balance at beginning of period 468,708,120 451,769,256
Additions during the period 28,270,334 10,616,139
Reclassiications during the period ~ 6,322,725
Balance at end of period 496,978,454 468,708,120
Accurnulated amortization:
Balance at beginning of period 371,636,579 331,372,506
Arportization during the period (see Notes 26) 19,383,644 40,264,073
Balance at end of period 391,026,223 371,636,579
105,958,231 97,071,541

18. Short-term Loans

The Parent Company obtained unsecured short-term peso from local banks in 2021 and 2020. Details and

movements of the short-term loans are as follows:

Jane 38, 2621

December 31, 2020

_ {(Unauvdited) (Audited)
Balance at beginning of period 720,345,000 400,000,000
Additions 4,585,965,600 984,340,000
Payments {720,660,000) (641,895,000)
Foreign exchange loss {gain) (53,250,600) {22,100,000)
Balance at end of period 4,532,460,000 720,345,000

The loans consist of fixed rate notes with the following details:

Intergst Rate June 30, 2621 December 31,

Lender Currency Amount {per annum) Terms (Unaudited) 2020 (Audited)

Citibank  USD $21,000,000 1.59% Avagiled in 2021; P1,024,800,000 -

payable in 150 days

Citibank  Peso £1,000,000,000 231% Availed in 2021; 1,000,000,0600 -
pavable in 91 days

BPI Peso £1,000,000,000 2.35% Awvsiled in 2021; 1,060,800,000 -
payable in 120 days

Citibank  USD $14,500,000 1.66% Availed in 2021, 707,600,600 -
payable in 311 days

BPI Peso P500,000,000 2.45% Availed in-2021; 500,000,000 -
payable in 316 days

Metrobank Peso 300,060,000 2.35% Availed in 2021; 304,000,000 -
payable in 91 days

BPI Peso $15,000,000 1.80% Availed in 2020, £720,345,000

payable in 182 days

Interest expense on US dollar-denominated loans amounted to £3.78 million for the six-month period ended
June 30, 2021 while interest expense on peso-denominated loans amounted to P8.25 million and $4.34

million for the six-month period ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively.

51



19.

Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

" June 36, 2021

December 31, 2020

(Unaudited) {Audited)
Payable to government agencies 1,784,0677.971 1,693,375,218
Contract Habilities 409,304,278 35,908,512
Trade payables 686,081,454 517,862,437
Customers' deposits 20,784,410 41,685,087
Accrued expenses:
Utilities and others 339,752,983 285,296,940
Payroll and talent fees 333,073,852 232,299 305
Commissions 13,472,089 44 859,071
Production cosis 66,967,594 67,809,420
Others 85,576,805 58,788,937

3,799,061,836 2,977,884,927

Payable to government agencies is composed of the Group’s statutory compensation-related contributions to
government agencies and net VAT and withholding taxes payable to the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR). The
difference between the accrual accounting under the accounting standards and cash-basis accounting as prescribed
by the BIR for service-related companies caused the Group to normally incur deferred output VAT which forms

a substantial part of the Group’s payable to government agencies. These payables are remitted within 30 days
after reporting period.

Contract liabilities pertain to payments received before broadcast and before delivery of goods and services.
These are recognized as revenue when the Group performs the obligation under the contract.

Trade payables to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settied on terms ranging from 7-60 days.
Customers’ deposits include guaranty deposits from advertising agencies to secure payment of bills by advertisers.
These deposits are non-interest bearing and normally refunded once the related broadcasts are paid by the
advertisers. It also includes deposits from the Group’s lessees upon inception of the lease agreements,

Accrued expenseé and other pziyabies are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled within the next 12 months,

Others include unpaid subscﬁptions and retention payables. These are noninteresi-bearing and are normally
settled within one year. -

20.

[

Obligations for Program and Other Rights

Obligations for program and other rights represent liabilities to foreign and local film suppliers for program and
other rights purchased by the Group. Outstanding unpaid balance as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020
amotmted to £559.03 million and P176.18 million, respectively. Obligations for program and other rights are
noninterest-bearing and are generally payable in equal monthly or quarterly installments,
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Material Events

Any known trends, demands, commiiments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s
Hquidity.

As of June 30, 2021, there are no known trends, ‘demands, commitments, events or yncertainties that will have a
material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

Any material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments and the expected
sources of funds for such expenditures.

The 2021 Capital Expenditure budget of the parent company amounts to #1,207.54 million. This will be financed
from internaily-generated funds.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

GMA Network’s results of operations depend largely on the ability to sell airtime for advertising. The Company’s
business may be affected by the general condition of the economy of the Philippines.

Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company, including
any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of June 30, 2021, there are no events which may trigger a direct or contingent financial obligation that is-
material to the Company.

Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

As of June 30, 2021, there are no significant elements of income or loss that did arise from the issuer’s continuing
operations.

Any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or resalts of operations,
There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

Any material events that were unusual because of their nature, size or incidents affecting assets; liabilities, equity,
net income, or cash flows.

There are no material events that were unusual because of their nature, size or incidents affecting assets, Habilities,
equity, net income, or cash flows.

Amny material events subsequent to the end of the interim period that have not been reflected in the financial
statements for the interim period.

There were no material events, subsequent to the end of interim period that have not been reflected in the financial
statements for the interim period.
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22. BEquity
a. {Capital Stock

There were no movements in capital stock as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 with composition as
follows:

Preferred Common
Numnber of Number of
Shares  Peso Equivalent Shares  Peso Equivalent

Authorized - P0.20 par

value per preferred

share/B1.00 par value

per common share 7,500,000,000  $1,500,000,000 5,000,000,000  $5,000,000,000
Subscribed and issued 7,500,000,000 1,500,000,000  3,364,692,000 3,364,692.000
Treasury shares 492 816 98,563 3,645,000 3,645,000
Underlying shares of the
acquired PDRs - 750,000 P750,000

The cumulative preferred shares are of equal rank, preference and priority and are identical in all respect
regardless of series. Preferred shares are participating at the rate of one fifth (1/5) of the dividend paid to common
shares, the rate of which is adjusted proportionately by the Parent Company’s BOD consequent to any stock sphit
or stock dividend declaration affecting the common shares and preferred shares. Preferred shares are convertible
at the option of the shareholders at the ratio of five preferred shares o one common share, based on par value.

Preferred shares enjoy priority over common shares in the distribution of assets of the Parent Company in the
event of dissolution and liquidation, at such rates, terms and conditions as the BOD may determine. Each
preferred share is entitied to one vole and shall have the same voting rights as the common shares.

The Parent Comypany’s BOD may specify other ferms and conditions, qualifications, restrictions and privileges
of the preferred shares or series/classes thereof, insofar as such terms, conditions, qualifications, restrictions and
privileges are not inconsistent with the articles of incorporation and any applicable law or regulation.

The following summarizes the information on the Parent Company’s registration of securities with the SEC which
was approved on June 20, 2007, as required by Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended {2011);

Authorized and Issue/Offer
Securities issued shares Price
Initial public offering 91,346,000 8.50
Underlymg common share of PDRs 945,432,000 8.50
Over-agllotment common shares 13,701,000 2.50
Common shares covering employee stock option plan 57,000,000 8.50

In prior years, the Parent Company has acquired 750,000 PDRs issued by GMA Heldings, Inc. at acquisition cost
of #5.79 million. In as much as each PDR share grants the holder, upon payment of the exercise price and subject
1o certain other conditions, the delivery of one (1) Parent Company share or the sale and delivery of the proceeds
of such sale of Parent Company share, such PDRs held by the Parent Company is being treated similar to a
treasury share.
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b. Retained Earnings

The retained earnings of the Parent Company is restricted for the payment of dividends to the extent of B34.27
million as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, representing the cost of shares held in treasury and underlying
shares of the acquired PDRs amounting to £28.48 million and B5.79 mitlion, respectively.

The Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of the following cash dividends:

Cash Dividend Per  Total Cash Dividend

Year Declaration Date Record Date Share Declaration
2021 March 26, 2621 April 22,2621 P1.35 P6,561,267 889
2020  June 15,2020 June 24, 2020 P0.30 P1.458,059 531
2019 March 29,2019 April 22,2019 POA4S P2,187,089,297

The Parent Company’s outstanding dividends payable amounts to 26,581.16 million and $19.8% million as at
June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

23.

Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control, Related parties may be individual or corporate

_ entities.

The Parent Company has an approval requirement such that material related party transactions (RPTs) shall be
reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee (the Commitice) and submitted to the BOD for approval.
Material RPTs are those transactions that meet the threshold value amounting to ten percent (10%} or higher of
the Company’s total consolidated assets based on its latest audited financial statements either individually, or in
aggregate over a twelve (12)-month period with the same related party.

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured and settflement occurs in cash throughout the financial year. There
have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For periods ended
June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables on amounts
owed by the related parties. The assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates,

In the ordinary course of business, the Group transacts with associates, affiliates, jointly controlled entities and
other related parties on advances, reimbursement of expenses, and future stock subscriptions.

The transactions and balances of accounts as at and for the periods ended June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020
with related parties are as follows:



Amount/

Volume of  Receivables
Related Party Category Year  Transactions (Payables} Terms Conditions
Associate -
Mort-Aire Advances (see Note 13} 2821 566,346 98,288,362 \Noninterest- Unsecured;
2020 600,186 97,722,016 bearing not impaired
Comnion
stockholders:
GMA Kapuso Reimbursable 2621 - 1,356,049 Ondemand, Unsecured;
Foundation, Inc. charges 2020 1,167,042 3,361,550 noninterest-  not impaired
bearing
Belo, Gozon, Legal, consulting and 2621 14,840,800 - On demand, Unsecured;
Elma Law retainers' fees 2020 13,711,015 - noninterest-  not impaired
bearing
Joint ventures:
Gamespan Advances (see Note 13} 2021 - 1,959,670 Noninterest- Unsecured;
2020 - 1,959,670 bearing not impaired
PEP Advances {see Note 13) 2621 - 832,195 Noninterest- Unsecured;
2020 248,640 860,055 bearing not impaired

The advances made by the Parent Company to Mont-Aire and PEP are intended for future capital subscription.
On the other hand, the advances-to INQ7 were fully impaired as a result of the applcation of the Group’s share

ir the losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess of the Group’s carrying value of investment
(see Note 13).

Compensation of Kev Management Personnel
The compensation of key management personnel of the Group, by benefit type, follows:

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

(Unaudited)
Salaries and short-term benefits 434,758,753 337,003,016
Pension benefits 85,519,452 50,305,488
520,279,285 387,308,504

Equity Investments of the Retirement Fund

The Group’s retirement fund includes equity investments in GMA Network, Inc. and GMA PDRs amounting to
£100.56 million and £724.04 million as at June 30, 2021, respectively and £41.78 million and $331.3% million
as at December 31, 2020, respectively.
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24. Met Revenues

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenues from contract with customers for the six months
ended June 30:

June 390, 2021
{Unaudtted)

June 30, 2020

Type of service
Sake of service

Advertising revenue 9,886,901,659 6,145,995,697
Subscription revenue 397,316,915 477,895,226
Revenue from distribution and content provisioning 15,017,831 34,519,731
Production revenue 42,277,585 17,080,501
Sale of goods 256,565,178 76,193,586

10,598,079,168

6,751,684,741

Geographical markets
Local 10,157,491,519 6,215,554,288
International 440,587,658 536,130,453
10,598,079,168 6,751,684,741
’ﬁming of revenue recognition .
Services transferred at one point in time 10,200,762,253 6,273,789,515
Services transferred over fime 397,316,915 477,895,226
] 10,598,0679,168 6,751,684,741

25. Production Costs

June 3¢, 2021

June 30, 2020

(Unaudited)

Talent fees and production personnel costs (see Note 27) 1,105,234,133 903,867,383
Program and other rights nsage 482,831,452 330,558,154
Facilities and production services 258,483,043 212,679,907
Rental 148,086,356 165,718,860
Tapes sets and production supplies 91,018,685 106,312,370
Transportation and communication 80,057,577 40,685,037
Depreciation (see Note 14) 72,861,155 77,156,490

2,238,572,401 1,837,018,201




26. General and Administrative Expenses

June 38, 2021 June 30, 2020
(Unaudited)

Personnel costs (see Note 27) 2,383,132,212 1,939,383,314
Depreciation (see Notes 14, 16 and 29) 202,146,874 196,991,393
Professional fees 162,914,630 89,343,947
Taxes and licenses 127,414,378 87,723,748
Communication, lght and water 123,214,854 118,264,392
Repairs and maintenance 101,256,148 55,208,828
Advertiging 42,834,140 41,917,309
Software mamtenance 42,584,441 35,575,074
Research and surveys 43,917,065 44,423,316
Marketing expenses 37,140,486 24,305,417
Security services 32,034,615 33,810,811
Rental and facilities 28,975,981 30,469,100
Amortization of software costs (see Note 17) 19,383,644 21,880,938
Transportation and travel 13,749,857 22,195,834
Insurance 11,875,147 12,056,917
Janitorial services 9,384,351 12,400,876
Materials and supplies _ 6,606,362 3,999,699
‘Entertainment, amusement and recreation 3,035,361 4,010,695
Provision for ECL ’ 250,000 250,000
Others : 74,613,900 30,116,944
3,466,458,446 2,833,328,566

Others include expenses incurred for messengerial services, other manpower services, donations and other
miscellaneous expenses.

Depreciation and Amortization

June 30, 2621 June 30, 2020
{Unaudited)
Property and equipment: ‘
Production costs (see Notes 14 and 25) 72,861,155 77,196,490
General and administrative expenses (see Note 14) 186,747,759 194,436,168
Right-of-Use assets
General and administrative expenses (see Note 29) 11,781,921 1,864,031
Investment properties - -
(General and administrative expenses {sce Note 16) 691,194 691,194
275,002,029 274,187 883




27. Personnel Costs

This account consists of

Fumne 30, 2023

June 30, 2020

{Unaudited)
Salaries and wages 1,060,838,234 858,282,092
Talent fees 1,321,075,306 1,295,309,217

Employee benefits and allowances 643,254,569 355,811,307

Sick and vacation leaves expernse 141,238,598 137,535,328

Pension expense 321,959,338 196,312,753

3.488,366,345 2,843,250,697

The said amounts were distributed as follows:
June 30, 2821 Jume 30, 2020
{Unaudited)

Production costs {see Note 25) 1,165,234,133 903,867,383
General and administrative expenses {see Note 26) 2.383,132,212 1,939,383,314
3,488,366,345 2,843,250,697

28. Others - Net

This account consists of the following income {expenses):

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

{Unaudited)

Gain on sale of property and equipment 44,306,752 3,404,770
Commissions from Artist Center 34,007,868 18,009,212
Rental 3,206,427 3,712,818
Merchandising license fees and others 673,598 439,878
Bank charges (963,039) {480,918}
Income from mall shows 115,605 187,170
Others 1,392,562 387,635

82,739,173 25,660,565

29. Agreements

Lease Agreements

Starting January 1. 2019 - Upon adoption of PFRS 16

Group as a Lessee

The Group entered into various lease agreements for land, building, studio and office spaces that it presently
occupies and uses for periods ranging from two to 12 years. The lease agreements can be renewed subject to.

mutual agreement and can be terminated at the option of the Group. Previously, these leases were classified as
operating leases under PAS 17.

The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or Iess. The Group applies the “short-term lease”
recognition exemptions for these leases,
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The rollforward analysis of right-of-use assets follows:

June 30, 2021
{Unaudited)
Right-of-use:

Right-of-use; Buaiidings, studio Right-of-use:
Land and office spaces Total
Cost
Balnce at the beginning of the year 94,553,477 47,768,091 142,261,568
Additions (Cancellations) - 33,003,860 33,003,360
Balance at the end of the period 94,553,477 86,711,951 175,265,428
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the vear 28,798,918 24,194,374 52,993,292
Depreciation - 11,701,921 11,701,921
Balance at the end of the period 28,798,918 35,896,295 64,695,213
Net Book Value 65,754,559 44,815,656 £10,570,215
December 31, 2020
{Audited)
Right-of-use:
Right-of-use:  Buildings, studio Right-of-use:
Land and office spaces Total
Cost .
Balance at the beginning of the year 94,553,477 65,911,762 160,465,236
Pre-termination - {18,203,671) {18,203,671)
Balance at the end of the year 94,553,477 47.708,091 142,261,568
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the year 16,797,383 13,865,670 30,663,053
Depreciation (see Note 25) 12,001,535 15,776,420 27,777,955
Pre-termination - {5,447,716) (5,447,716}
Balance at the end of the year 28,798,918 24,194,374 52,993,202
Net Book Value 65,754,559 23,513,717 29,268,276
The rollforward analysis of lease liabilities follows:
June 30, 2021  December 31, 2020
(Unaudited) {Audited)
Current portion 13,429,406 10,485,295
Noncurrent portion 79,357,274 66,370,777
92.786.674 76,856,072
June 30, 2021  December 31, 2020
{(Unaudited) {Audited)
Balance at the begimning of the year 76,856,072 105,788,115
Additions 24,517,250 -
Accretion of interest 3,294,533 5,817.214
Payments (11,881,181) (21,762,363}

Pre-termimation
Balance at the end of the period

{12,986,854)
76,856,072

92,786,674
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The rollforward analysis of dismantling provision follows:

June 30, 2621  December 31, 2020

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Balance at the beginning of the year 44,973,410 42,392,195
Accretion of interest 1,192,627 2,581,215
Reversal {1,085,485) -
Balance at the beginning of the period 45,080,552 44,973,410

Total rental expense amounted 1o 148.68 million and 179.77 million as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively
{(see Notes 25 and 26).

Group as Lessor. The Group leases out certain properties for a period of one year, renewable annually. The
{eased-out properties include investment properties, and broadcasting equipment. Total rental income amounted
to £1.59 million and £1.54 million as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 28).

Subscription Agreements

The Parent Company entered into various subscription agreements with international cable providers for the airing
of its programs and shows abroad. The agreements generally have terms of three to five years and are based on
certain agreed service package rates.

Total subscription income amounted to B397.32 million and B477.90 million for the six months ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 24).

30.

EPS Cemputation

The computation of basic EPS follows:

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
{Unaudited)

Net income attributabie to Equity Holders of Parent Company (a) 3,635,279,922 1,401,039,158
Less attributable to preferred sharcholders 1,121,880,444 432,373,425
Net income attributable to common shareholders (b) 2.513,399,479 968,665,732
Commeon shares issued at the beginning of year 3,364,692,000 3,364,692,000
Treasury shares (see Note 22) (3,645,600) (3,645,000)
Underlying shares on the acquired PDRs ( see Note 22) (750,000} {750,000)
Weighted average number of commeon shares

for basic EPS {(¢) - 3,360,297,000 3,360,297,000
Weighted average number of common shares 3,360,297.600 3,360,297,000
Effect of dilution - assumed conversion of

preferred shares 1,560,600,060 1,500,000,000
Reacquired preferred shares (492,816) {492,816)
Weighted average number of common shares

adjusied for the effect of dilution (d) ' 4.859,804,184 4,859,804,184
Basic EPS (b/c) {.748 0.288
Diluted EPS (a/d) ¢ 0.748 0.288
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31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main purposes of these
financial instruments include raising financing for the Group’s operations and managing identified financial rigks.
The Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, refundable deposits, trade
payables and other current liabilities (excluding payable to government agencies, customers’ deposits and contract
liabilities), short-term loans, cbligations for program and other right, dividends payable and other long-term
employee benefits, which arise directly from its operations, and financial assets at FVOCL The main risks arising
from the use of financial instraments are liquidity risk, foreign currency exchange risk and credit risk. The Group
is not exposed to interest rate risk as most of its financial assets and financial liabilities have fixed rates.

The BOD reviews and approves the Group’s objectives and polici _es..'.
Liguidity Risk. The Group is exposed to the possibility that adverse changes in the business environment and/or

its operations would result in substantially higher working capital requirements and subsequently pose difficulty
in financing the additional working capital.

The Group manages liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations to meet its short-term
liquidity needs. The Group likewise regularly evaluates other financing instruments and arrangements to broaden
the Group’s range of financing sources.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets used for liquidity risk based on
contractual undiscounted payments as at Juné 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

June 30, 2021

(Unaudited)
On Demand >3 Months 3 te 12 Months Viore than 1 vear Tatal
Cash and cash equivalents 2,885,869,946 622,571,556 - - 3,508,441,502
Trade receivables: .
Television and radio airtime 1,908,243,483  7,806,371,288 - - 9,714,614,771
Subscription 166,930,881 78,658,065 - - 244,988,946
Others 86,056,952 70,669,683 - - 156,126,635
Nontrade receivables
Advances to officers and employees 1,462,052 6,004,336 - - 7,466,388
Others 118,802,137 24,609,222 - - 143,411,359
Refundable deposits* - - - 21,544,628 21,544,629
Financial assets at FVOCI - - - 192,282,088 192,282,088
5,167,365,451  8,667,684.150 - 213,826,717  13.988.876,318
Farward
Trade payables and other current liabilities** 724,110,851 047,455,441 213,358,885 - 1,584,925,177
Short-term lpang*+* . 2,300,000,060  2,232,400,000 . 4,532,400,000
Obligation for program and other rights - 130,431,743 428,598,155 - 559,029,898
Lease Hability - 7,194,201 6,235,199 79,357,274 92,786,674
Dividends payable 44,045,949 - - - 44,045,949
768,156,800 3,085,081,385 2.880,592,239 74.357,274 6,813,187,698

*Included under "Other noncurrent asseis” account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 17},

** Excluding payable to government agencies, customers’ deposits and contract liabilities amounting to P1,784.08 million, P20.78
million and P409.30 million, respectively (see Note 19).

FERGross contractual payments.
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December 31, 2026

{ Audited)
On Demand >3 Months 3 to 12 Months More than 1 year Total
Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cashand cash equivalents 2,892,545,281 322,271,983 - - 3,214,817.264
Trade recetvables:
Television and radio airtime 2,455964,077 7478,640,764 - - 9,934,604 ,841
Subscriptions 162,802,287 84,098,769 - - 246,901,056
Others 82,251,529 46,624,618 ~ - 128,876,147
Nontrade receivables
Adwanices to officers and employees 1,636,162 5,230,704 - - 6,866,866
{tthers 84,639,593 64,649,192 - - 149.288,785
Refundable deposits*® - - - 21427422 21,427,422
Financial assets at FVOCI - - - 192,132,088 192,132 088
5,679,838,929  §,001,516,030 - 213,559,510 13,894,914 469
Loans and borrowings:
Trade payables and other current labilities®* 541,916,369 648,035,317 16,964,424 - 1,206,916,110
Short-term loans*** - 720,741,190 - - 720,741,150
Obligation for program and other rights - 73,369,390 102,812,738 - 176,182,128
Lease liabilities - 4,208,629 12,032,002 83,333,102 99,573,733
Dividends paysble 19,854 437 - - - 19,894,437
561810806 1446354526 131,809,164 83,333.102 2,223 307 598
Liquidity Portion (Gap) 5,118,028,123  6,555,161,504  {131,809,164) 130,226,408 11,671.606,871

*Included under "Other noncurrent assets” gccount in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 17).

" ** Excluding payable to government agencies, customers’ deposits and coniract liabilities amounting to P1,693.38 million, P35.91
million and P41.69 million, respectively (see Note 19).
*5¥Gross contractual payments.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk results from its business transactions denominated in foreign

currencies. It is the Group’s policy to ensure that capabilities exist for active but conservative management of its
foreign currency exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are as follows:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
{(Unaudited) {Audited)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 54,270,348 P2077,983,009 $14,428,000 P6Y2,832,539
31,804,998 70,691,304 C$1,515,837 56,692,289
Trade receivables $5,391,371 262,581,382 $4,295 851 206,286,757
C$210,220 8,233,096 C$1,392,382 52,075,098
5% - 8$113,726 4,107,775
A% - A$536,854 1,341,474
DH- - DHS2,170 682,387
P549,488,791 P1,014,018,319
Liabilities
Trade payables $591,990 P218.889,112 $2,891,699 P138,859,374
Short-term loans 35,500,000 1,732.400,600 15,000,000 720,345,000
Obligations for program and other rights 7,928,210 (386.896,648) 2,892,613 138,903,262
2,148,185,760 PO9E, 792 560
(P1,598.696,969) P15.225,759
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In translating the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities into Philippine peso amounts, the
exchange rate used were P48.80 to USH1.00 and B48,02 to US$1.00as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively. The exchange rate for Philippine peso to Canadian dollar was 39.16 to CADE1.00 as at June 30,

2021. The peso equivalents for the Singaporean Dollar, Australian Dollar and Ditham are £36.12, £36.40 and
£13.08, respectively as at December 31, 2020.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in US$ exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax from reporting date up to next reporting

date {due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There is no impact on the Group’s equity
other than those already affecting profit or loss.

Effect on Income before Income Tax

Appreciation/

(Depreciation)
of Peso Ush CAD SGI» AUD ALY} EUR Total
June 30, 2021 0.50  (#4,297,186) P251,962 P P P P (4,045,284)
(6.50} 4,297,186 251,902 - - - - 4,045,284
December 31, 2020 0.50 £1,036,534  (P1,454,109) (B56,863) (B18427T) {B26,085) £5,835 {513,115)
(0.50)  (1,036,534) 1,454,109 56,863 18,427 256,085 {5,835) 513,115

Credit Risk. Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of credit
approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. It is the Group’s policy to enter into transactions with a diversity
of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk. '

The Group ensures that sales of products and services are made to customers with appropriate credit history. The
Group has an internal mechanism to monitor the granting of credit and management of credit exposures. The
Group has made provisions, where necessary, for potential losses on credits extended. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of the
instrurnents, The Group does not require any collateral for ifs financial assets, thus, maximum exposure to credit
risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial instruments,

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated financial
position as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020;

June 36, 2621
{Unaudited)

December 31, 2020
{Audited)

Fmancial assets at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents*
Trade receivables:

Television and radio airtime

3,012,965,220 2,557,264,071

9,714,614,771

9,934,604,841

Subscription 244,988,946 246,901,056
Others 156,126,635 128,876,147
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to officers and employees 7,466,388 6,866,866
Others 143,411,359 149,288,785
Refundable deposit™* 21,544,629 21,427,422
13,301.,057,948 13,045,229,188
Financial assets at FVOCI 192,282,088 192,132,088
13,493,34¢,036 13,237.361,276

*Excluding cash on hand and production fund amounting to P495.54 million and P657.55 million
as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

**Included under "Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial

position (see Note 17},
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The maximum exposure for cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) is the carrying amount less
insured amount by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation equivalent to the actual cash balance to a
maximum of £0.50 million per depositor per bank. The maximum exposure of trade and non-trade receivables

and refundable deposits is equal to its carrying amount.
Credit qualitv of Financial Assets, Other than Trade Receivables

The financial assets of the Group are grouped according to stage whose description is explained as follows:

Stage 1 - Those that are considered current and up to 120 past due and based on change in rating delinquencies
and payment history, do not demonstrate significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 2 - Those that, based on change in rating, delinquencies and payment history, demonstrate significant
increase in credit risk, and/or are considered more than 120 to 360 days past due but does not demonstrate
objective evidence of impairment as of reporting date.

Stage 3 - Those that are considered in default or demonstrate objective evidence of impairment as of reporting
date,

The credit quality of the Group’s financial assets are as follows:

June 30, 2021
{Unaundited}
Fair Value
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month KCL.  Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL Total

Financial assets at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents* 3,012,805,220 - - 3,012,%05,220
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to offices and

employees 7.466,388 - - 7.466,388
Others 143,411,359 - - 143,411,359
Refundable deposits** 21,544,629 - - 21,544,629
3,185,327.596 - - 3,185,327.596

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to P495.54 million as at June 30, 2021.
**Icluded under "Other noncurrent assets" account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see
Note 17).

December 31, 2020

{Audited)
Fair Value
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime BECL Total
Financial assets at amortized cost :
Cash and cash equivalents* 2,557,264,071 - - 2,557,264,071
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to offices and
employees 6,866,866 - - 6,866,866
Others 149,288,785 - - 149,288,785
Refundable deposits** 21427 422 - - 21,427,422
2.734,847,144 - - 2,734,847 144

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to P657.55 million as at December 31, 2020.
**Included under "Other noncurrent assets" account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see
Note 17).
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Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Group’s trade receivables using provision
matrix:

June 30, 2023 (Unaudited}
Days past due

Current 036 days 31 - 60 days 61 -90 days 91 days and abhove ‘Tatal
Expected credit loss rate 1% 6% &% 17% 6%
Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default #7,341,428,460 $351,928,635 #201,141,921 P520,%66,781 B2.406,907,849  210,882,373,666
Fxpected credit loss 44,863,938 21,309,155 45,194,870 41,105,689 614,219,662 766,793,314
December 31, 2020 (Audited}
Days past due
91 days and
Cyrrent {-30 davys 31-6{ days 61-90 days ahove Total
Expected credit logs rate 1% 4% 11% 1i% 29%
Estimated total gross carrying
amount &t default B7,609,364,151 $550,621,274 409,092,189 P360,266,377 F2,147,556,367  R11,076,900,358
Expected credit loss 44,863,538 21,309,133 43,154,870 41,105,689 614,044,662 766,518,314

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments fo it, in the light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, payoff existing debts, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Parent Company is not subject fo externally imposed capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for periods ended June 30, 2021 and December 31,
2020.

The Group monitors its capital gearing by measuring the ratio of interest-bearing loan to total equity. The Group’s
interest-bearing loans, which are short-term loans, amounted to 24,532 .40 million and 2720.35 million as at June
30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. The Group’s total equity attributable to equity holders of the

Parent Company as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 amounted to B9,820.05 million and £12,809.06
million, respectively.

32.

Fair Value Measurement

The table below presents the carrying values and fair values of the Group’s assets and liabilities, by category and
by class, as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

June 3@, 2621
{Unandifed)
Fair Value
Significant
Qunoted Prices in Significant  Unobservable
Active Market Observable Input Inputs
Carrving Vaiue {Level 1) (Level 2} {Level 3)
Assets Measured at Fair Value
Land at revalued amount 2,850,896.481 - - 2,850,896,481
AFS financial assets 192,282,088 12,971,842 179,310,246
Assets for which Fair Value are Disclosed : =
Investment properties : 34,178,640 - - 203,902,548
Toans and receivables - :
Refundabie deposits® 21,544,629 - - 17,517,336
3,098,901,838 -~ - 3,251,626.605%

*ncluded under "Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Noie 7).
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December 31, 2020

(Audited)
Fair Value
Significant
Quoted Prices in Stgnificant Unobservable
Active Market Observable Input Inputs
Carrying Value {Level 1) {Lewel 2) (Level 3)
Assets Measured ai Fair Value
Larxd at revalued amount 2,803,196,184 - - 2,803,196,184
Financial assets ag FVOCI 192,132,088 - 12,971,842 179,160,246
Assets for which Fair Value are Disclosed
Investment properties 34,869,834 - - 203,902,548
Loans and receivables -
Refundable deposits* 21,427,422 - - 17,422,032
3,051,625 528 - 12,971,842 3,203,681,010

*Included under "Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statemenis of financial position (see Note 17).

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2021, the fair value of equity instruments in a listed entity is classified
under Level 3 due to the investee Company’s suspension of trading in the market.

The fair values of equity instruments in listed and non-listed companies classified under Level 3 were determined
through the following valuation approach: asset-based approach and market approach. Asset-based approach is
based on the value of all the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities of the company. Market approach is
predicated upon the concept that the value of an asset can be estimated by comparing its value to assets with

similar features.

Presented below are the significant unobservable inputs used in the market approach valuation of the Group’s

financial assets as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

Description Unobservable Inputs

Range

June 30, 2021

December 31, 2020

Listed equity instrument:

Casinos and gaming industry Discount for fack of marketability
Discount for fack of control

Nen-listed equity instroments:

Media and entertainment Discount for lack of marketability

industry

Discount for lack of control

10%-30%
16%-30%

10%-30%

10%-30%

10%-30%
10%-30%

10%-30%

10%-30%

Axn increase (decrease) in the significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the equity mvestments

will decrease (increase) the fair value of the equity investments.

Fair Value Determination

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each asset and liability for which

it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Short-term Invesiments and Trade and Other Receivables
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and trade and nontrade receivables
approximate their fair values primarily due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Refindable Deposits

The fair value of refundable deposits is based on the present value of the future discounted cash flows. Discount
rates used range from 3.26% to 4.44% ag at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.
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Financial assets at FVOC]

The Group’s investments in club shares were based on prices readily available from brokers and other regulatory
agencies as at reporting date. The fair values of equity investments in listed and non-listed companies have been
estimated using the net asset value model and market approach. The valuation using market approach requires
management to make certain judgments in deriving the set of comparable companies for each entity and in the

selection of the appropriate multiples within the range, considering qualitative and quantitative factors specific
to the measurement,

Investment Properties and Land at Revalued Amount

The valuation for investment properties and land at revalued amount was derived through market data approach
based upon prices paid in actual market transactions. This approach relies on the comparison of recent sale
transactions or offerings of similar properties which have occurred and/or offered with close proximity to the
subject property adjusted based on certain elements of comparison (e.g. market conditions, location, physical
condition and amenities). Significant unobservable valuation input in determining the fair value of investment
properties includes adjusted price per square meter that ranges from B1,400 to £117,000. On the other hand,
significant unobservable valuation input in determining fair value of land at revalued amount includes adjusted
price per square meter that ranges from 8200 to £97,000.

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated price per square meter would result in a significantly higher (lower)
fair value of the properties.

‘Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities (excluding Payable to Government Agencfes and Advances firom
Customers), Short-term Loans, Obligations for Program and Other Rights and Dividends Payable
The carrying values of trade payables and other current liabilities, short-term loans, current portion of obligations

for program and other rights and dividends pavable approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term
maturity of these financial instruments.

Lease liabilities
The fair value is based on the discounted value of future cash flows using the applicable rates for similar types

of loans plus the applicable credit spread. Discount rates used ranged from 1.59% to 3.57% as at June 30, 2021
and December 31, 2020.

33. Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Statements of Financial Position (June 30, 2021 vs. December 31, 2020)

e (Cash and cash equivalents of 3,508.44 million climbed by £293 .62 million or 9% from 2020 balance of
£3,214.82 million as a result of net cash flows provided by operating activities of £3,511.01 million
primarily netted by acquisition of property and equipment, payment of dividends and settlement of short-
term loans during the six-month period of 2021 amounting to P436.14 million, 26,537.12 million and
£720.66 million, respectively,

¢ Trade and other receivables closed at £10,266.61 million, 2% lower than end-2020"s £10,466.54 million
as a result of better collection efforts as of June 30, 2021.

e  Short-term loans increased to £4,532.40 million due to availment of loans during the 2™ quarter of 2021.
Equity atiributable to Parent Company stockholders of £9,820.05 million as at June 30, 2021 decreased
by 23% or B2,989.01 million, mainly due to the cash dividend declaration amounting to £6,561.27

cushioned by the $3,635.28 million net income attributable fo Parent Company earned for the six months
ended June 30, 2021.
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34. Other Notes to 2021 and 2820 Operations and Financials

The key performance indicators that the Group monitors are the following:

June 38, 2023

{Unaudited)

Tune 30, 2020

Revenues

Airtime revenues

Cash operating expenses
EBITDA

Net income before tax
Net income after tax

10,598,079,168
9,453,453,112
5,128,315,144
5,527,155,730
4,740,113,967
3,668,606,382

June 34, 2021

6,751,684,741
5,878,331,918
4,109,225,365
2,632,703,853
2,013,161,403
1,408,083,886

December 31, 2020

(Unaudited) {Audited)

Current ratio 1.80 2.89
Asset-to-Bquity ratio 2.56 1.86

Debt-to-Equity ratio 0.46 0.06

June 30, 2621 June 30, 2020

. {Unaudited)

Interest Rate Coverage ratio 287.67 418.52
EBITDA margin 52% 39%
Net income margin 35% 21%
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GMA Netwo rk, Ine. and Subsidiaries
Financial Ratios
For the Six Months Ended June 390, 2021

Exhibit 4

Ratios Formula in PhP June 3¢, 2021 December 31, 2020
Current Ratio Current Assets 17,619,689,037 1.80 2.89
Current Liabilities 9,798,003,477
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Net Debt-to-Equity Ratio less cash and cash equivalents 1,023,958,498 0.10 {0.19)
Total Equity 9,025,731,687
Assets-to-Equity Ratio Total Assets 25,403,194,041 2.56 1.86
Total BEquity 9,025,731,687
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio HBIT 4,749,938,604 287.67 418.52
Interest expense 16,511,861
Profitability Raties Formula in PhP June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Gross Profit Margin Gross Profit 8,158,755,345 TT% 2%
Net Revenues 10,598,079,168
Net Income Margin Net Income 3,668,606,382 35% 21%

Net Revenues

10,598,079,168
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this report to be
signed on behalf by the undersigned theretmto duly authorized.

Issuer: GMA NETWORK, INC.

By:

\

RONALDO P, MASTRILE
SVP, FINANCE & ICT

Date: August 13, 2021
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